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1 BALANCE SHEET AS AT NOVEMBER 30, 2019
(hefore appropriaticn of results)

November 30, 2019 November30, 2018

8 8 § $

ASSETS

Fixed asscts

Tangible fixed assets (63)
Other tangible fixed assets 18,078 26,316

Financial fixed assets @
“Participations in group companies 817,400,649 559,288,602
Receivables from group companies 599,215,396 133,060,151
Other participating interests 7,500,000 700
1,424,116,045 692,349,453
Current assets

Receivables, prepayments and

acerued incomie K1)

Receivables from groupcompanies 20,009,592" 2,604,015
Taxes and social securities 27,349 37173
Other receivables, prepayments and ’
acerued ineome 47,605 401,327

20,084,546 3,042,515
Cash and cash equivalents @ 19,426,911 19,503,067

ASSETS. 1,463,646,480 714,924,351

Deloitte Accountants B.V.

For identification purposes only.
Related to auditor's report
dated September 3, 2020,
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November 30, 2019 November 30, 2018

$ 5 s S

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity 3
Issued share capital 836,590,331 573,165,825
Share premium reserve 04,678 10,693,066
Other reserves: -290,343,251 -354,947,363
Undistributed result 273,784,090 324,430,234

820,125.848 653,341,762
Non-current liabilities ©®
Debt to credit institutions 478,714,455 105,379,759.
Loans from group companies 40,806 4,341,665

478,755,201 109,721,425
Current liahilities (2]
Short tem part lang-term debt to credit
institutions 119,828 622 40,008,504
Trade creditors 51,761 ' 295,655
Loans.from participations in group _ _
‘companies 24,001,513 2,708,923
Amournts due to participants and to B
companies in which participation takes _
place - 7,500,000
Taxes and social securities 19,334 -
Other liabilities, accruals and deferred
income 20,864,141 1,258,082

164,765,371 51,861,164
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,463,646,480 714,924,351

Deloitte Accountants B.V.
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2 PROFIT ANT} LOSS ACCOUNT OVER z018/2019

2018/2019 2017/2018
$ S § 8
Other operating income 8) 245,634 _ 286,766
Sum of gperating ineome 245,634 286,766
Expenses
Employee expenses (9) 603,713 417,167
Depreciation {10} 10,338 10,338
Impairment of current assets {11) 1,927,004 .
Other operating expenses (12) 1,094,718 789,461
3,635,773 1,216,056

Operating result -3,390,139 -930,190
Interest and similar income (3) 54,585,156 6,186,052

; Interest and similar expénses (14) . ~54,437,222 +8,625,028

} Financial income and expenses. 147,934 -2,459,576
Resaltbefore tax -3,242,205 -3,369,766
Taxes - -
Shatre in result of participating
interests (15) 277,026,204 327,800,000
Resultafter tax 273,784,089 . 324,430,234

Delgitte Accountants B.V.

Far Identification purposes only,
Related to auditor's feport 3 m
dated September 9, 20205
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3  NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL

Activities

The activities of Karpower Infernational B.V. (the Company), with registered offices in Amsterdam, maiuly
consist of management, holding, financing and insurance service activities.

Going concern

The cutbreak of the Corona Virus in 2020 kas no negative impact on the activities of Karpower International
B.V. The amounts received from dividend, interest and other charged expenses remains at a stable level. Ore
reason being the fact that the power ships of the Karadeniz groupave supplying mostly to residential areas, for
example. This supply is important to the countries coneer ned, therefore any amounts due are being paid to the
Karadeniz Group within the (usuall payment terms: As sucli amounts for interest and dividend pavments are
still available to Karpower International B.V. The Corona Virus has o material impact kot theré is tncertainty
related to the development of the future results of the Company.

Registered office, legal form anid registration number at the chamber of commerce

The registered and actual address of Karpower International 8.V, (Coc file 34369187 is Heérengracht 493, 1017
BT, in Amsterdam. '

Group structure.
The company is part of the Karkey Group. The immediate parent company is Karkey Karadeniz & Elektrik Uretim

A.S:in Istanbul, Turkey. The uliimate parent company is Karadeniz Holding A.5.. The financial statements of
the Company dre consolidated into the Annual repott of the cltimate sharéholder.

In accordance with article 2:408 of the Netherlands Civil Code (subholding exemption) no consolidated annual
accounts have been prepared.

The audited financial statements of the ultimate Parent Company are filed with the Chamber of Commeree
together with these financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Title 9 Boak 2 of the Dutch Civil Eode and the
firm pronouncements in the Guidelines for Anrual Reporting in the Netherlands as issued by the Dutch
Accounting Standards Board.

[Assets and liabilities are generally valued at historical cost, production cost or at faif value.at the time of
‘aequisition. If no speeific valuation principle has been stated, valuation is at historical cost. In the balance sheet
and income statement, references are made to the notes.

‘Comparison with previous year
The vdluation principles and method of determining the result ave the same as those used in the previous year.

The insurance expenses ‘inthe profit and loss dccount have been reclassified from ather operating expenses to
other operatmg income. The reclassification doss not effect the resuit or equxtv

Deloitta Accountants B.V.
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Estimates

The preparatlon of financial stalenientsin confonuity with the relevant rules requu'es the use of certain critical
accountmg estimates. It also requires management to exercise its Judgemeut in the progess of applying the
Group's accounting pelicies. 1f necessary for the purposes of providing the view required under Section 362(1},
Boclk 2, of the Dutch Civil Codé, the nature of these estimates and Judgmeuts, inctiding the related
assumptions, is disclosed in the notes to the financial statement items in-question. ‘

Leasing
Operational leasing

The company may hayve lease contracts wheréby a large part of the risks and rewards associated with ownership
are nct for the benefit of nor incurred by the company. The lease contracts are recogrised as-operalional
leasing. Lease payments are recorded on a.straight-line basis, taking into account reimbursements received
from the lessor, in the income statement for the duraticn of the contract.

Functional Currency

The Company is domiciled in the Netherlands, The Company conducts most of its buginess in U.8. Dollars,
loans granted by the Company and the other financing activities are denominated in [7.S. Dollars and
contributions to the capital of the subsidiaries are denominated in U.8. Dollars. Accmdmgh 1.8, Dollars was
determined to the Company's functional and preseéntation eurrency, which reflects the economic substance of
the underlying events and circinstances relevant to the Company. The financial statements-are presented in
U.S. Dollars, which is the functional and presentation currency of the Company. '

Receivables, liabitities 2nd obligations denominated in foreign currency are franslated at the exchange rates
prevailing at balance sheet date. Transactions in foréign currency during the financial yeat are recognised in
the annual accounts at the exchange rates prevailing at transaction date,

Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are presented at acquisition price less-cumulative depreciation and, ifapplicable, less
impairmeénts invalue. Depreciation is based on the estimated useful life and caleulated as a fixed percenitage of
cost, taking into account any residual value. Depreciation is provided from the date an asset comes into use,

Financial fixed assets

Investment in subsidiarjes )
Due to the use of the exemption provided by article 408, Book 2 of the Netherlands Civil Cede, the investiments
in participations are stated at the acquisition price or, if permapent, at impaired net realizable vatue.

Receivables
Upon, initial recognition the receivables on and loans to participations and other receivables are valued atfair
value and Then valued at amortised cost, which equals the face value, after dediction of dny provisions.

Other participating interests
Otherparticipating. interests are stated at the dequisition price or, if permanent; at impaired net realizabile
value.

Dejoitte Accountants B.V.
For |gentlficatlon purpbses. only
Related to auditor's report
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Impairment of non-current assets

On each balance sheet date, the company assesses whether there are any indications that a fixed asset may be
subject to impairment. If there are such indications, the realisable value of the asset is determined. If it is not
possible te determine the realisable value of the individual asset, the realisable value of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs is determined.

An impairment occurs when the carrying amount of an asset is higher than the realisable value; the realisable
value is the higher of the realisable value and the value in use. An impairment loss is directly recognised in the
income statement while the carrying amount of the asset concerned is concurrently reduced.

The realisable value is initially based on a binding sale agreement; if there is no such agreement, the realisable
value is determined based on the active market, whereby usually the prevailing bid price is taken as market
price. For the determination of the value in use, an estimate is made of the future net cash flows in the event of
continued use of the asset / cash-generating unit.

If it is established that an impairment that was recognised in the past no longer exists or has reduced, the
increased carrying amcunt of the assel concerned is set no higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined if no impairment value adjustment for the asset concerned had been reported.

Receivables, prepavments and accrued income

Upon initiat recognition the receivables on and loans to participations and other receivables are valued at fair
value and then valued at amortised cost, which equals the face value, after deduction of any provisions. The fair
value and amortised cost equal the face value. Any provisions for the risk of doubtful debts are deducted. These
provisions are determined based on individual assessment of the receivables. The receivables presented as
current assets are expected to be collected within one year.,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are valued at nominal value and, insofar as not stated otherwise, are at the free
disposal of the company. Cash and cash equivalents relate to immediately due and payable withdrawal claims
against credil institutions and cash resources,

Non-current liabilities

Long-term liabilities concern loans with a term of longer than one vear. The part of the loans that is repaid in
the coming financial year, has been included under the current liabilities.

Upon initial recognition, the loans and liabilities recorded are stated at fair value and then valued

at amortised cost. When there are no premiums, discounts or transaction costs, the amortised cost is equal to
the nominal value.

Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redempticn value is recognised as
interest in the income statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Current liabilities

On initial recognition current liabilities are recognised at fair value, After initial recognition current liabilities
are recognised at the amortised cost price.

When there are no premiums, discounts ot transaction costs, the amortised cost is equal to the nominal value.
All current Habilities fall due in less than one vear.

Deloitte Accountants B.V,
For identification purposes only.

Related to auditor's report/’
dated September 9, 2020.
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Gengral

The resuit is the difference between the realisable value of the serviges prowded and the costs and other
charges during the vear. The results on transactions are recognised in the year in-which they are realised.

Determination of the result

The tesult is determined based upon the difference between the total cperating income and the costs and other
expenses taking intg. account the aforementioned valuation principles.

QOther gperating income

Other operating income consists of assurance services and charged expenses. These Tevenues are allocated to
the réporting pericd in accordance with the content of the agresment,

Expenses general
Costs are attributed to the financial year to which they related. |
Employce expenses

Salaries, wages and social security contributions are charged to the income statement based on the terms of
¢mployment, where they are due to employees and the tax avthorities respectively.

Depreciation

The depreciation on tangible fixed assets is caleulated by using 2 fixed rate on the acquisition cost based on the
expected life cyele, Gains and losses from the occasional sale of property, plant or equipment are included in
depreciation.

Future depreciations is adjusted if there is a change in estimated future useful life.

Financial income and expenses

Financial income and expenses comprise inlerest incoine and expenses for loans (issued and received) during
the current peripd. Interest income and expenses are recognised on a pro rata basis, taking accoumt of the
effective interest rate of the assets and liabilities to which they relate,

Receivabiles, labilities and obligations denominated in foreign currencies are Iratislated at the exchange rates
prevailing at bilance sheet date.

Share in result of participating interests

Dividends to be received from participations net carried as net asset value are recognised in the income
statement in the period that they arise as soon the Company has acquired the right'to them.

Taxes

Corporate income tax is calculated at the applicable rate.on the result for the financial year, taking into account
permanent differences between profit calculated according to the annual account and profit ealculated for
taxation purposes, and with which deferred tax assets (if applizable) are only valued insofar as their realisation
isltkely.’

Deloitte Accountants B.V.
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Related to auditer's report ™
dated September 9, 2020

‘Karpower International B.V., Amsterdam: -g-




4 NOTES TO THE BALANCE SHEET AS OF NOVEMBER 30, 2019

1. Tangible fixed assets

Other tangible
fixed assets
)
Carrying amount as of December 1, 2018
Purchase price 51,679
Cumulative depreciation -22,363
29,316
Movement
Depreciation -10,338
Carrying amount as of November 30, 2019
Purchase price 51,679
Cumulative depreciation -32,701
18,978
Depreciation rates
%
Other tangible fixed assets 20
2. Financial fixed assets
Participations  Receivables Other
in group from group  participating
companies companies interests Total
$ 5 $ $
Carryving amount as of December 1, 2018 559,288,602 133,000,151 700 692,349,453
Investments 261,926,953 537,310,700 7,500,000 B06,737,653
Disposals / collections -4,200 -57.888,159 -700  -57,893,059
Impairment -3,810,706 - - -3,810,706
Amortisation capitalised expenses - 4,076,535 - 4,076,535
Capitalised expenses - -17,343,831 - -17,343,831
Carrying amount as of November 30, 2019 817,400,649 599,215,396 7,500,000 1,424,116,045

The cumulative impairment of participations in group companies amounts per November 30, 2019
% 14,610,706 (November 20, 2018: $ 10,800,000).

For disclosure of the impairment of participations in group companies we refer to note 15.

Deloitte Accountants B.V.

For identification purposes only.
Reiated to auditor's report
dated September 9, 2020
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11/30/2019 11/30/2018

s $
Participations in group companies
Karmol Powership Company Ltd. at Malta (100%) 145.000,000 -
Karadeniz Powership Orhan Bey Co Lid. at Republic of the Marshall
Islands {106%) 47,000,000 47,000,000
Karadeniz Holdings Ltd. at Malta (100%) 464,622,400 397.622,400
Karpowershipyard Rauf Bey Company Ltd. at Republic of the Marshall
Islands (100%) 206,000,000 29,000,000
Karadeniz Powership Zeynep Sultan Company Ltd. at Isle of Man {100%) 26,350,000 26,350,000
Karpower Enternational DMCC at Bubai (100%) 19,932,753 1,000,000
Karmarine Karadeniz Denizeilik ve Ticaret A.S. at Turkey (100%) 18,885,101 20,735,191
Karadeniz Powership Yurdanur Suftan Company Ltd. at Republic of the
Marshall Islands {(100%) 17,000,000 10,000
Powership Operation DMCC at Dubai (100%) 15,000,000 1,000,600
Karadeniz Powership Yasin Bey Company Ltd, at Repubtic of the Marshall
Islands (100%) 14,000,000 14,000,000
Karpowership Irag Company Ltd. at Republic of the Marshall Islands
{100%:} 10,000,000 10,000,000
Karadeniz Powership Gokhan Bey Company Ltd. at Republic of the
Marshall Islands (100%) 9,000,000 9,000,000
PT Karpowership Indonesia at Indonesia (95%) 950,000 950,000
Karpowership Ghana Company Ltd. at Ghana (100%) 500,000 500,000
Karpowership Mozambique Company Limitada at Republic of the
Marshall Islands (100%) 99,500 99,500
Karpowership Namibia Company Lid. at Namibia (100%) 10,803 10,803
Karpower Ghana Finance Services B.V. at Netherlands (100%) 10,000 10,000
Karadeniz Powership Suheyla Sultan Company Ltd. at Republic of the
Marshall islands {100%) 10,000 10,000
Karadeniz Powership Esra Sultan Company Ltd. at Republic of the
Marshall Islands (100%) 10,000 10,000
Karadeniz Powership Mozambigue Company Ltd. at Republic of the
Marshall Islands (100%) 10,000 10,000
Karpower ludonesia Finance Services B.V. at The Netherlands (100%) 13,000 10,000
Karpowership Latam Company Ltd. at England and Wales (100%) 1 1
Karpowership UK Ltd. at England and Wales (100%) 1 1,960,707

817,400,649 559,288,602

Deloitte Accountants B.V.

For identification purposes only.
Related to auditor's report
dated September 9, 2020
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11/30/2019 11/30/2018

s §

Receivables from group companies

Katadeniz Powership Lehanon Company Lid. 108,502,837 -
Karadeniz Powership Ibrahim Bey Company Ltd. 98,389,807 -
Karpowershipyard Rauf Bey Company Lid. 52,247,226 -
Karadeniz Powership Ebru Sultan Company Ltd. 48,708,424 48,767,168
Karadeniz Powership Koray Bey Company Lid. 28,519,650 15,647,689
Karmpl LNG Company Ltd. 22,686,731 -
Ksradeniz Powership Kaya Bev Company Lid. 19,013,100 23,705,126
Karadeniz Powership Ela Sultan Company Ltd. - 24,880,168
Karaceniz Powership Orka Sultan Company Ltd. 221,057,621 -

599,215,396 133,060,151

The total nominal amount of the loans amounts per November 30, 2019 § 615,061,731 (30 November 2018:
$.135,263,159), Of the total amount of tlie loans.an amount of $ 47%:405,232 (30 November 2018:
'$.81,533;928) has a remaining duration of longer than one yvéarand an arhount of §.27,448,643 (20 November
2018 § 1b,666,672) has a remaining duration of longer than 5 years. The mortgages has been duly registred
against the ships "Karadeniz Powership Orka Sultan”; "Karadeniz Powersh ip Lebanon", "Karadeniz Powership
Thrahim Bey", "Karadéniz Poweérship Ebrir Sultan”, "Karadeniz Powership Xoray Bey” and "Karadeniz
Powership Kaya Bey".

Per 30 November-2019 the capltailsed ¢harged expenses and fees for the-loan amounts $ 15,846,337

{30 Nopvember 2018: % 2,203,008), an amount of § 10,800,630 (30 November 2018: § 1,229,488} has a
mmammg duration of lcmger than 1 year and an amount of § 102,838 (30 November 20:8 § 280 »165) has 2
rematning duration of longer than 5 years.

The total quistanding amount of the loans-and chaiged capital expenses with & remaining duration shorter
than one year amounts $ 103,264,987
‘On all the loans risk premium and haudling fees of 0.207% per annum has been calculated.

Karadeniz Powership Ela Sultan Compary Ltd,
The loan to Karadeniz Powership Ela Sultan Company Lid. was fully repaid oh 5 Aprﬂ 2019.

Keradeniz Powership Kaya Bey Company Ltd.

On 23 Cctober 2018 the Comnpany had lended a loan to Karadeniz Powership Kaya Company Ltd (nominal
amount of § 24,000,000). The maturity date is'5 vears from drawdown date. The interest rate is 3m LIBOR -~
5.75% per annum. The principal amount is payable with quarterly equal instalments commencmg 3 months
after the drawdown date. The interest is payable with quarterly instalments commencing 3 months after the
drawdown date,

Karadeniz Powership Lebancr Company Ltd.

-On 19 September 2019 the Company has lended a Joan to Karadeniz Powership Lebanon Compariy Ltd.
{nominal amount of $ 125,000,000). The matutlty date is 2 years from drawdown date, The interest rate is 3m
LIBOR + 6.5% perannum. Theé principal amount is payable with per halfyear instalments commencing 3
months after the drawdown date. The interest is payable with per half yearinstalments eommencing 3 montis.
after the drawdown date. The charged expenses for the loan ($3,729,159) are capitalized and amortised during
the duration of the Joan.

Deloitte Accountants B.V.
Far identification purposes. enly.
Related to auditor's report
‘dated Séptember 9, 20 :
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Karadeniz Powership Koray Bey Company Ltd.

On 23 Qctober 2018 the Company has Tended a loan fo Karadeniz Powership Koray Bey Company Ltd.
{nominal amount of % 36,000,000). The matyrity date is. 5 years-from drawdcwn date. Theinlerest rate is Jm
LIBOR + 5.75% per-annum. The pnncnpal amount is payable with quarterly equal instalments commencing 3
manths after the drawdown date. The intérest is payabla with quarterly instalments commencing 3 months’
-after the drawdown datg.

Karmal LNGCompany Led.

On 18 December 2018 the Company has lended a loan to Karmol LNG Company Ltd. fnominal amount of
349,000, 000). Per November 30, 2019 the withdrawn amount amounts §.22,310,700. The maturity date'is 10
yeats from the drawdown date. The interest rate is 3m LIBOR +1% per aupum and the interest is added to the
principle amount of the loar. Tlie loaushall be repaid in full 10 years from tie drawdown date.

Karadeniz Powership 1brahim Bey Compadny Ltd:

On 10 December2018 and 8 April 201¢ the Compaiiy has lended a loan to Karadeniz Powership Ibrahim Bey
Company Ltd. (nomjnal amount of $ 101,640,000). The maturity date is 5 years from. drawdown date. The
interest rate is 3m LIBOR + 8. 5% per annum, The pnnctpal amotmt is payable with per half year mstalmems
tommencing 2 yéars after drawdown date. The interest is payable with perhalf year instalments commencing 2
years after drawdovn date. The charged expenses for the lodn ($4,048,131) aré capitalized and amartised
duzing fhe duration of the lean,

Karaderiz Powership Orka Stiltan Company Ltd.

Ou 10 December 2018 and 8 Aprii 2019 the Company has lended a loan to Karadeniz Powership Orka Sultan
Company Ltd, (nominal amount of § 228,360,000). The maturity date is 5 vears from drawdown date. The
interest rate is am LIBOR + 8 5% per annum. The prmmpal amount is pavable with per half year instalments
commencing 2 vears after drawdown date. The interest is payable with per half year instalments cemniencing 2
vears after drawdown date, The charged expenses forthe loan ($9,095,149) are capitalized and amortised
during the duration of the loan.

Karpowershipyard Rouf Bey Company Ltd.

On 4 April 2019 the Company has lended a loan to Karpowershipyard Rauf Bey Company Ltd. {(nomiual
amount of $ 60,800,000). The maturity date is 4 years from drawdown date. The interest rate is 3m LIBOR +
6.1% per.annum, The prlnclpal amount is payable with quarterly instalments  commencing 3 months after the
dravdown date: The interest is payable with quarterly instalments commencing 3 months after the drawdovwn
date. The'charged expenses for the loait {$302,500) are capitalizéd and amortised during the duration of the
loan.

Karadeniz Powership Ebru Sulten Company Ltd.

.On 21 May 2018 the Company haslended 2 loan to Karadeniz Powership Ebru Sultan Company Lid. (nominal
amount of § 50,000,000). The maturity date is 7 years from drawdown date, The interest rate is gm LIBOR +
5.25% per annum. The principal amountis payible with quarterly equal instalments commencing 24 months
after the-drawdown date, The interest is payable with quarterly instalments commencing 3 mouths after the
drawdown date. The charged expenses for the loan {($168,802) are eapitalised and amortised during the
duratitn of the Toan. ’

11/30/2019 11/30/2018
$ $

Other participating interests
Karmol LNG Company Ltd. at Malta {(50%) 7,500,000 700

Deloitte Accountants 8.V,
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3. Receivables, prepayments and accrued income

Receivables from group companies

Karadeniz Powership Orka Sultan Company Ltd. interest long-term
receivable

Karadeniz Powership Ibrahim Bey Company Ltd. interest long-term
receivable

Karpowershipyard Rauf Bey Company Ltd. interest long-term receivable
Karadeniz Holdings Ltd.

Karadeniz Powership Kora Bey Company Ltd. interest long-term
receivable

Karadeniz Powership Kaya Bey Company Ltd. interest long-term
receivable

Karpowership Ebru Sultan Company Lid. interest long-term receivable
Karmo! LNG Company Ltd. interest long-term receivable
Karpowership Latam Limited

Karadeniz Powership Mozambique Company Ltd.

Karpowership Namibia Company Litd.

Karpowership UK Ltd.

Mozambique FSRU Company Limited

Karpower International DMCC

Karpower Ghana Finance Services B.V.

Karadeniz Powership Ela Sultan Company Ltd.

Karpower Indonesia Finance Services B.V,

Karadeniz Powership Lebanon Company Ltd.

Karpowership Ela Sultan Company Ltd. interest long-term receivable

11/30/2019 11/30/2018

$ $

12,351,640 -

5,497,551 -

768,619 -

424,111 113,111

301,634 318,966

201,089 212,644

198,733 160,803

137,832 -

107,093 276,030

21,190 21,190

100 100

- 1,218,317

- 650

- 4,777

- 62,273

- 5,131

- 44,080

- 5,000

- 160,043

20,009,502 2,604,015

The receivables related to the long-term receivables includes the calculated risk premium and handling fees
2019. For disclosure of agreements in respect of repayment and securities of this receivables we refer to note 2.

The other receivables bear nio interest. No agreements have been made in respect of repayment and securities,
The cumulative impairment amounts per November 30, 2019 $ 1,927,004 (November 30, 2018: nil).
For disclosure of the impairment of receivables from group companies we refer to note 11.

Taxes and social securities

Corporate income tax
Value added tax

Other receivables, prepayments and accrued income

Security deposit rent office
Managementfee group companies

Rent receivable group companies

Prepaid expenses

Receivable relating to the transfer of shares
Accrued income group companies

Karpower International B.V., Amsterdam

24,076 24,676
2,673 12,497
27,349 37.173
26,750 26,750
12,000 39,000
7,721 42,469
1,134 6,325

- 200

- 286,083
47,605 401,327

Beloitte Accountants B.V.
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The'current receivables do not include entries with a duration of more than oue year.

11/30/2039 11/30/2018

$ $

4. Cash and ¢ash equivalents

Deposit YapiKredi Bank 15,585,000 -
Mauritius Commercial Bank USD account 2,548,433 2,822,071
YapiKredi Bank USD aceount 1,049,150 16,402,551
Mongy in transit 120,000 -
Credit Europe Bank USD account 53,010 22,865
GarantiBank EUR account 25,787 80,235
Bankmed USD account 13,288 6,535
YapiKredi Bank EUR account 8,225 13,784
YapiKredi Bank GBF account 7,245 192
GarantiBank USD account 6,870 50,000
Bank Audi USD account 5:540 5;628
YapiKredi Bank TRL accourit 3,529 -
Credit Europe Bank EUR accoutit 819 206
ICBC Turkey Bank TRL account & -

19,426,911 19,503,067

The cash and cash equivalents are at free disposal of tiie Company. The deposit hasa reméihing duration of
shotter than one year.

5. Equity

Issued sharc capital

The company's antharised and 1ssued capital consist of 1,338,892 ordinary shares issued with a nominal valoe
of USD 624,84 each (2017/2018: U3D 646,73), The Company does not have any preferred stock: During
201872019 new shares has been jssued. Differences between the paid amount by the shareholder and nominal
amount of the shares has in accordance with the deeds added to the share premiun reserve,

Ordinary
shares
$
Carrying amount £s of December 1, 2018 573,165,825
Issue new shares - paid 272,835,553
Due to adjustment nominal value of the shares -20,010,881
Issue new shares - conversion share premium reserve 10,599,834
Carrying amount as of November 30, 2019 836,590,331
Statutery share capital 836,590,331
Number of shares issued 1,338,892
Par value 624.84

Deloitte Accountants BV,
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2018/2019 2017{2018
$ $

Share premium reserve
Carrying amount as of December 1 _ _ 10,693,066 10,691,080,
Difference nominal amourt issued shares and paid amotinit
shareholder ‘ 1,446 1,086
Conversion into share capital -10,599,834 -
Carryingsmount as of November 30 94,678 12,693,066
Otherreserves
Carrying amount as of December 1 ~354:947,363  -113;783,788
Allocation of previous finaricial year net result 324,430,233 96,604,835
Distributed interim dividend. _ -276,837,002 -337,768,410
Due to adjustment nominal value of the shares -20,010,881 -
Carrying amount as of November 30 -290,343,251  -354,947,363
Undistributed result
Carrying amount as of December 1 324,430,234 96,_6;0'4,835;
Unappropriated profit 273,784,089 324,430,234
Appropriation result prior yeat -324,430,233  -96,004,835
Carrying amount as of November 30 273,784,000 324,430,234

Deloitte Actountants B.V.

For Identification. purpcses oniy.
‘Related to auditor's report 7y e
-dated September 9, 202 e
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6. Non-current liabilities

1 f30’)'2019 11/30/2018

8 §
Debtta credit institutions
Loan Credit Evrope Bank 42,773,836 9,199,776
Loan Mauritins Commereial Bank 77,528,690 96,179,983
Loan Wilimington Trust - 358,411,925 .

478,714,455 105,379,759

The company has received several loans from Credit Europe Bank, the Mauritius Cornmercial Bank and
Wilmington Trust. Group companies of the Company that have used the funds have provided mottgages on the
ships they own as a security,

Of the 1otal daxncunt of the loans; per November 30, 2018 § 614,449,578 (Novamber 30, 2018: § 147,674,923)
an amount of § 484,982,623 (November 30,2018: § 62,663,858} has a remaiuning duration of longer than'1
year and an amount of $ 4,761,912 {November go, 2018: § 14,285,720) has a remaining duration of longer than
5 years. A morigage has been duly registred against several ships.owned by thie group companies. Also several
financial convenunts has ngreed related to the Debt Service Cover Ratio, Leverage Ratio and the Loan to Value
Ratio, Algo guarantees have been given by related parties and negative pledges has been agreed with pari-passu
clauses. Also Karpower International B.V. has given a-dividend pledge.

Per November 30, 2019 the capitalised expenses for the Ioan amounts $ 15,906,502 (November 30,2018

$ 2,286,660), an aniount of § 10,027,244 (Novernber 30, 2018: § 1,280,654) has a remaining duration of
longer than 1 vear and an amount of § 102,838 (Novembier 30, 2018: § 280,165} has a remaining duration of
longer than 5 years.

Laan
LoanCredit Mawitius = Loun
Europe.  Commercial Wilminglon
Bank Bank Trust ‘Total
5 $. $ 8
Catrying amount as of December 1, 2018 37,208,280 108,176,983 - 145,388,263
Funds withdrawn 60,000,000 - 455,000,000 515,000,000
Capitalised expenses -302,500 -168,802 -16,872,430 -17,343,81
Amortizing Capitalised expenses 456,204 320,083 2,047,703 3,723,990
Repayment -36,225,345 -12,0040,000 - -48,225,345
Carrying amount as of November 30, 2019 61,336,639  06,331.174 441,075,264 508,543,077
Repaymenl chligations < 12 months -18,362,803 -18,802,484 -82,663,335 -119,828,622
Long-tern: part as of November 30, 2019 42,773,836 77,528,600 358,411,920 478,714,455

Deloitte Accountants B.V.
For identificaticn purposes only.
Related to auditor's report
dated Septamber 9, 2020;
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2018/2019 2017/2018

S $

Loan Credit Europe Bank

Carrving amount as of December 1 37,208,280 54,395,035
Funds withdrawn 60,000,000 -
Capitalised expenses related to loan Credit Europe Bank -302,500 -
Amortizing Capitalised expenses related to loan Credit Europe

Bank 456,204 424,036
Repayment -36,225,345 -17,610,701
Carrying amount as of November 30 61,136,639 37,208,280
Repayment obligations < 12 months -18,362,803 -28,008,504
Long-term part as at November 30 42,773,836 9,169,776

On 13 May 2015 the Company received a loan (nominal amount of $ 12,000,000) from Credit Europe Bank.
The maturity date is ¥ years starting from drawdown date, The interest rate is 3m LIBOR + 6.20% per annum.
The principal amount is payable with quarterly equal instalments commencing 24 months after the drawdown
date. The interest is payable with quarterly instalments.

On 23 June 2017 the Company received a loan (nominal amount of $ 5,000,000) from Credit Europe Bank.
The maturity date is § years starting from drawdown date. The interest rate is 3m LIBOR + 6.75% per annum.
The principal amount is payable with quarterly equal instalments commencing 12 months after the drawdown
date. The interest is pavable with quarterly instalments.

On 15 November 2017 the Company received a loan (nominal amount of $ 40,000,000) from Credit Europe
Bank. The maturity date is 2 vears starting from drawdown date, The interest rate is 3m LIBOR + 6,30% per
annum. The principal amount is payvable with monthly equal instalments commencing 6 months after the
drawdown date. The interest is payable with quarterly instalments and monthly commencing 6 months after
the drawdown date.

On 4 April 2019 the Company received a loan (nominal amount of $ 60.000,000) from Credit Europe Bank.
The maturity date is 4 vears starting from drawdown date. The interest rate is 3m LIBOR + 6.10% per annum.
The principal amount is payable with quarterly instalments commencing 3 months after the drawdown date.
The interest is pavable with quarterly instalments commencing 3 months after the drawdown date. The
expenses for the loan (8 302,500) are capitalized and amortised during the duration of the loan.

Per November 40, 2019 the balance of the capitalised expenses for these loans amounts $ 312,940
(November 30, 2018: $ 466,643). For details of the securities we refer to the general paragraph of this note.

Deloitte Accountants B.V.
For identification purposes only,

Related to auditor's report /
dated September 9, 2020
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201872015 2017/2018

3 $
Loan Maouritius Commercial Bank
Carrying amoint ds.of December 1 108,179,983 -
Tunds withdrawn - 110,000,000
Capitalised expenses related to lcan Mauritius Commercial
Bank. -168.892 -1,933,525
Amortizing Capitalised expenses related to loan Mauritius
Commeércial Bank 320,083 113,508
Repayment ~12,000,000 .
Carrving amaunt as of November 30 96,331,174 108,179,983
Repayment obligations <12 months ~18,802,484 -12,000,000
Long-term part as at November 30 77,528,600 06,179,083

On 14 May 2018 the Coimpany recelved a.Joan {nominal amount of § §0,000,000) from the Maurmus
Commercial Bank Ltd. The maturity date is 7 years: starting from drawdown date. The interest rate is am
'LIBOR + 5.25% per annum. The pnnc(pal dmount is payable with quarterly equal instalmeats comthencing 3
nichths after the drawdown date. The interest {s payable with-quarterly instalments, The ¢xpenses for the loan
(5 168,B92) are capitalised en amortised duringthe duratiog of the loan.

On 16 October 2018 the Company received a loan (nominal amount of $ 60,000,000) fiom the Mauritius
Commercial Bank Ltd, The maturity date is 5 years starting from drawdown date. The interest rate is 3m
LIBOR + 5.75% per apnum. The principal dmount is payable with quarterly equal instalmenits commencing 3
months after the drawdown date. Theinterest 1s payable with guarterly instalments.

Per November 3o, 2019 the balance of the capitalised expenses for thesz loans amoints § 1,668,827
{November 30, 2018 §1,820,017). ¥or details of the securities we refer to the general paragraph of this note.

Deloitte Accountants BV,
For ldentiflcation purpeses oniv.
Related to.auditor's report’
dated Septemiber 9, 2020s
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2018/2019 201¢/2018

8 s

Loan Wilmingtorn Trust

Carrving amount as of December 1 - -
Funds withdrawn 455,000,000 -
Capitalised expenses related to loan Wilmington Trust -16,872,439 -
Amortizing Capitalised expenses related to loan Wilmington

Trust 2,947,703 -
Carryving amount as of November 30 441,075,264 -
Repayment obligations next financial year -62,663,335 -
Long-term part as at November 3o 358,411,929 -

On 10 December 2018 and 8 April 2019 the Company received a loan {(nominal amount of $ 330,000,000}
from Wilmington Trust. The maturity date is 5 years starting from drawdown date. The interest rate is 3m
LIBOR + 8.5% per antum. The principle amount is payable with per half year instalments commencing 2 years
after drawdown date. The interest is payable per half vear instalments commencing 2 years after drawdown
date. The expenses for the loan (13,143.280) are capitalized and amortised during the duration of the loan.

On 18 September 2019 the Company received a loan (neminal amount of 8 125,000,000) from Wilmington
Trust. The maturity date is 2 years starting from drawdown date. The interest rate is 3m LIBOR + 6.5% per
annum. The principle amount is payable with per half vear instalments commencing 3 months after drawdown
date, The inleres! is pavable per half year instalments commencing 3 months after drawdown date. The
expenses for the loan (3,729,159} are capitalized and amortised during the duration of the loan.

Per November 30, 2019 the balance of the capitalized expenses for these loans amounts $ 13,924,736, For
details of the securities we refer to the general paragraph of this note.

The loans are arranged by Wilmington Trust. The financing of these loans has been doune by a consortium of

several Banks.

11/30/2016 11/30/2018
$ $

Loans from group companies
Capital contributions payable to participations 40,806 4,341,666

The payable relating to capital contributions bear no interest. No agreements have been made in respect of
repayment and securities.

7. Current liabilities

Short tem part long-term debt to eredit institutions
Financing 119,828,622 40,008,504

The repayment obligation relates to the loans of the Credit Europe Bank, the Mauritius Commercial Bank and
Wilmington Trust and includes the capitalised expenses with a rematning duration of shorter than one vear.
For further disclosure of these payable and loans reference is made to note 6.

Deloitte Accountants B.V.
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Related to auditor's report
dated September 9, 2020
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11/30/2019 11/30/2018

b $

Loans from participations in group companies
Capital contributions payable to participations 14,000,000 -
Karadeniz Powership Deniz Sultan Company Lid. 5,896,000 18,000
Karpowership Iraq Cumpany Ltd. 1,300,000 -
Karadeniz Powership Ebru Sultan Company Ltd. 1,003,087 973,938
Karadeniz Powership Koray Bey Company Lid. 909,786 987,003
Karadeniz Powership Kaya Bey Company Ltd. 705,865 814,962
Karadeniz Powership Lebanon Company Ltd. 186,775 ~
Karpowership Cyprus Campany Ltd. - 4,330

24,001,513 2,798,923

The company has received several loans from group companies.

The other payables bear no interest. No agreements have been made in respect of repayment and securities.
The pavable Karadeniz Powership Lebanon Company relates to interest long-term receivable received i
advance per November 30, 2019.

Amounts due to participants and to companies in which
participation takes place

Karkey Karadeniz Elektrik iretim A.S. - 7,500,000

Taxes and social securities

Pay-roll tax 19,334 -

Other liabilities, aceruals and deferred income

Accrued interest loan debt to credit institutions 20,724,431 818,822
Tax advisory costs payable 39,427 -
Audit costs 34,000 14,000
Gross salary former employee 33.333 -
Holiday bonus 20,450 13,101
Accrued general expenses 12,500 12,500
Accrued purchase price acquisition subsidiaries - 379,659

20,864,141 1,258,082

CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Long-term financial obligations
Purent Company Guarantees

The Company has provided guarantees to several external parties for its group companies for an amount of
5 1,127.6 million (2018: $ 1,240.6 million) mainly to guarantee credit risk for their operational purchases
(% 101.5 million) and loans ($ 1,026.1 million). The company has also provided tender bond guarantees to
several external parties for its subsidiaries for an amount of & nil {2018: § nil).

These guarantees only apply in the case that the group companies would default.

Deloitte Accountants B.V.

For identification purposes only.
Related to auditor’s report
dated September 9, 2020
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Ledse

"The company has liabilities atising from rental s 100,000 per year until December 31, 201¢ and operational
lease comimitments for a car of § 12,267 per year until August 31, 2020, _

Per January 1, 2020 a new rental agreement is in place with a ligbility of $ 42,641 per year until December 33,
3003,

Insurance agreements

The company has liabilities arising from insurance agreements, The liabilities within one vear amounts
§ 3,683,600 (2018: §$:3,665,833), theliabilities between one and five years amounts $ 2,160,042
(2018: 5 5,835,937) and the liabilities after five years amounts nil.

Deloitte Accountants B.V.
For'Identification-purposes enly.
Related to auditar's report 7 e
dated September 9, 2020

_Karpower International B.v,, Amsterdam -292-




5 NOTES TO THE PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT 2018/2019

2018/2019 2017/2018
5 $
8. Other operating income
Other operating income ) 72,000 84,510
Other operating income charged insurance expenses to related companies 3,646,320 4,247,376
Other operating income insurance expenses -1.472,686 -4,045,120
245,634 286,766
9. Employee expenses
Wages and salaries 555,087 382,805
Social security charges 48,026 34,352
603,713 417,157
Wages and salaries
Gross wages 485,521 357,489
Gross salary former employee {"Transitie’) 33,333 -
Movement of holiday bonus liability 36,833 25,316
555,687 382,805
Social security charges
Social security charge 48,026 34,352

The Company has no pension plan for their employees.

Staff

During 2018/2019, 4 employees were emploved on a full-time basis (2017/2018: 3).

10. Depreciation
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets
Cther tangible fixed assets 10,338 10,338

11.Jmpairment of current assets

Impairment receivable Karpowership UK Ltd. 1,593,567 -
Impairment receivable Karpowership Latam Limited 333,437 -
1,927,004 -

The impairment relates to the short term receivables group companies Karpowership UK Ltd. and
Karpowership Latam Limited. The outstanding receivable KarpowerShip UK Ltd. has been valued at nil per
November 30, 2019 and is fully impaired per November 30, 2019. The outstanding receivable Karpowership
Latam Limited has been valued at $ 107,093 per November 30, 2010 and is impaired for an amount of

$ 333.437 per November 30, 2019.

The decrease in value of the receivables Karpowership UK Lid and Karpowership Latam Litimed is caused by
the losses of those companies and abscence of profitable projects in the near future. Therefor the expectation is
that these receivables will not being fully repaid by those companies.

Deloitte Accountants B.V.
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2018/2019 2017/2018
s $
12. Other operating expenses
Other labour costs 3,287 8,202
Accommeodation expenses 51,237 53,368
Office expenses 16,688 21,527
Car expenses 15,523 12,206
Selling and distribution expenses 481,001 235,998
General expenses 526,982 458,160
1,094,718 789,461
Other labour costs
Travelling expenses 768 768
Other labour costs 2,519 7434
3,287 8,202
Accommodation expenses
Rent buildings 94,018 92,203
Other accommodation expenses 3,549 3,634
Allocated rent -46,330 -42,469
51,237 53,368
Office expenses
Automation costs 1,271 931
Telephone 15,417 20,596
16,688 21,527
Car expenses
Fuels 2,878 045
Lease costs 12,645 11,261
15,523 12,206
Selling and distribution expenses
Travelling expenses 452,851 125,934
Other cost of sales 28,150 110,064
481,00m 235,908
General expenses
Accounting costs 103,370 119,121
Consultancy fees 105,130 133,493
Legal charges 267,936 113,493
Notarial charges 25,022 13,402
Write-off other receivables - 11,467
VAT not recovered 59,406 52,637
Release accruals former years 37,984 -
Other general expenses 4,102 14,547
526,982 458,160

Deloitte Accountants B.V.

For identification purpases only.
Related to auditor's report
dated September 9, 2020.
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Financial income and expenses

2018/2019 2017/2018
S $

13.Interest and similar income
Interest Karadeniz Powership Asia Company Ltd. previous yeats 8.905 -
Amortizing capitalised charged expenses long-term receivable Karadeniz
Powership Ela Sultan Company Ltd. 182,990 412,804
Amortizing capitalised charged expenses long-term receivable Karadeniz
Powership Ebru Sultan Company Ltd. 200,148 100,693
Amortizing capitalised charged expenses long-term receivable Karadeniz
Powership Kaya Bey Company Ltd. 47,974 5,126
Amortizing capitalised charged expenses long-term receivable Karadeniz
Powership Koray Bey Company Lid. 71,961 7,689
Interest income Karadeniz Powership Ibrahim Bey Company Ltd. 10.858,569 -
Interest income Karadeniz Powership Orka Sultan Company Ltd. 24,396,592 -
Interest income Karmol LNG Company Ltd. 513,862 -
Interest income Karpowershipyard Rauf Bey Company Ltd. 3.295.723 -
laterest income Karadeniz Powership Lebanon Company Ltd. 2,272,830 -
Amortizing capitalised charged expenses long-term receivable Karadeniz
Powership Ibrahim Bey Company Ltd. 797.938 -
Amortizing capitalised charged expenses long-term receivable Karadeniz
Powership Orka Sultan Company Ltd. 1,792,770 -
Amortizing capitalised charged expenses long-term receivable
Karpowershipyard Rauf Bey Company Ltd. 49,726 -
Amortizing capitalised charged expenses long-tern receivable Karadeniz
Powership Lebanon Company Ltd. 356,996 -
Interest income Karadeniz Powership Ela Sultan Company Ltd. 637,878 3,029,863
Interest income Karadeniz Powership Ebru Sultan Company Lid. 4,064,756 2,095,742
Interest income Karadeniz Powership Kaya Bey Company Ltd. 1,854,818 212,044
Interest income Karadeniz Powership Koray Bey Company Ltd. 2,782,226 318,966
Charged tender bond guarantees 198,464 -
Interest bank - 2,435

54,585,156 6,186,052

r4.0nterest and similar expenses

Interest Joan Credit Europe Bank -4,834,873 -4,177,237
Banking fees and provision -21,222 -9,776
Interest loan Wilmingtor: Trust -36,832,013 -
Amortizing capitalised expenses long-term loan Credit Europe Bank -456,204 -424,036
Amortizing capitalised expenses long-term loan Mauritius Commercial

Bank -1320,083 -113,508
Amortizing capitalised expenses long-term loan Wilmington Trust -2,047,703 -
Interest loan Mauritius Commercial Bank -8,483,012 -2,558,725
Interest loan Karadeniz Powership Aysegul Sultan Company Ltd. - -30,568
Interest loan Karpowership Lebanon Company Lid. - ~g8,734
Exchange difference -343.948 -G08B,0653
Tender bond guarantee fees -198,464 -534,367
Interest Tax Authorities - -4,420
Pan American - retainer fees raising loans - ~65,604

-54,437,222 -8,625,628

Deloitte Accountants B.V.
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15.Share in result of participating initerests

2018/2ac1g. 20172018
$ $
Linpairment of Karmarine Karadeniz Denizcilik ve Ticaret AS. -1,850,000  -10,800,000
Impairiment of Karpowership UK Ltd. -1,960,706 ‘ -
Dividend Income of Karpowership Irag Company Lid. 105,000,000 67,200,000
Dividend income of Karadeniz Holdings Lid. 175,337,000 271,400,000
Dividend income of Powership Operation DMCC 500,000 -

277:026,294 327,800,000

The impairment relates tothe participation Karmarine Karadeniz Denizcilik ve Ticaret AZS. and Karpowership
UK.Ltd (2017/2018: Karmarine Karadeniz Denizeilik ve Ticaret A.58.).

The net equity of the investment Karmarine Karadeniz Denizcilik ve Ticaret A.S in USD has decreased below
the.acquisilion price, caused by the struectural decrease in value of the Turkish Lira, Por thiis reason the
participation is impaired per November 30, 2018. The impairiment per Novembeér 30, 2019 has béen reviewed
and updated.

The net equity of thie investment Karpowership UK Lid. in USD has decreased below the acquisition price,
caused by the structural losses and abscenee of expected profitable projects in the near future.

Delojtte Accountants B.V.
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] OTHER DISCLOSURES

FPost balance sheet events

On December 20, 2019 there are issued 24,006 additional shares with a nominal value ot USD 624.8378 per
share, total amourit of USD 14,999,856.

On January 81, 2020 there are issued 12,803 additional shares with a norninal value of USD 624.8378 per
share, total amount of USD 7,999,798.

Un April 14, 2020 there are issued 160,841-additional shares with a nominal value of USD 624.8378 per share,
total amount of USD 100,499,536.

On June B, 2020 there are issued 8,002 additional shares with a nominal value of USD 624.8378 per share,
“fotal amount of USD 4,999.952.

On July 15,2026 there are issued 80,020 additional shares with a newninal value of USD 624.8378 per share,
total zmount of USD 49,999,251,

On August 11, 2020 there are issued 64,016 additional shares with a nommal value of USD 624.8378 per share,
total amount of USD 39,999,617,

On August 18, 2020 there are issued 40,010 additional shares with a nominal value of USD 624.8378 per
share, tatal amount of USD24,999,76aG-

The actual number of ordinary shares consist of 1,728,590 shares.

In 2015/2020 the company has received dividend from participations for a total amount of USD 185,800,000
Alse the company has paid dividend to the shareholder for a total amount of USD 216,403,240.

On December 5, 2019 Karpower International B.V, has sold 25% of the shiares of Karimol Fowership Company
Ltd to Mitsui O.8.K. Lines Ltd for 2 total amount of USD 67 Mio.

In 2019/2020 the facility-agreement of $ 60 million with Credit Eurape Bank has lzen converted into an EUR
Ioan. The received amount of the loan has been lent to the group company Karpowershipyard Rauf Bey
Comipany Ltd.

The outbrealk of the Corona Virus it 2020 bas no negative impact on the activities of Karpower International
B.V. The amounts received from dividend, intereat and other charged expenses remains at a stablé level, One
reason being the fact that the power shlps of the Karademniz group are supplying mostly to residential areas, for
example. This supply is imiportant to the countries conezrned; thérefore any amounts dye ave being pald to the
Karadenjz Group within the (usual) payment terms. As such amounts for interést and dividend payments are
still available to Karpower Internationaf B.V. The Corona Virus has no material impact but there is uncertainty
related to the devélopment of the futare results of the Company.

Appropriation of the profit for 2018/2019
The board of directors proposes toada the profit for 2018/2019 of § 273,784,08g for the 2019/2020 financial
vear to the other reserves,

Awaltlng the approval by the General Meeting, this proposition has not been processed in the annual account
and is, therefore, included in the undistributed profit entry.

Related party transactions
Standard market transactions
In 2018/2019 severzl transactions, at arms length, has taken place with related parties. The main transactions
telate to'the investment/ increase capital in several participations (note 2), granted 1oans (note2) and the
charged insurance expenses {note 8).
Delcikte Accountants BV,
For fdantification pufposes only.
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Signing of the financial statements

Adoption of the financial statements

The financial statements are created and adopted by the management. The financial statements will be
approved by the General Meeting in 2 months after signing date.

Amsterdam, September 9, 2020

M

wer [nternational B.V.

O.R. Karadeniz O.M, Karadeniz
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T.G. van Essen G.B. Miiller,”
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OTHER INFORMATION
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OTHER INFORMATION

1 Provisions of the Articles of Association relating to profit appropriation

Based on article 26 of the statutes the result is at disposal of the General Meeting.

1. The general meeling is authorised to appropriate the profits that follow from adoption of the annual accounts
or to determine how a deficit will be acenunted for as well as to determine interim distributions from the

profits or distributions from the reserves, provided thatthe company's equity exceeds the total aniount of the
reserves to be maintained by virtue of the law.

2. A resolution for'the distribution of profits or resetves is subject tc tEe-approVa] of the management beard.
The management board shall only withhold its approval if it is aware of could reasonably anticipate that
followlnig the distribution the company will be unable to continueé to pay its payable debis.

3: Distributions shall be payable from the day determined by general meeting

4. The general meeting may resclve that distributions from profits or reserves shall be made in whole or in part
in a from other than cash.

5. The shares beld by the company in its capital are not included in the calculation for the profit distribution.

6. For the eomputation of the aniount to be distributed on esach share, only the amount of the obligatory
payments on the par yalue.of the shares shall be taken into-account.

7. A ¢laim of shareholders for payment of dividend shall be barred after five (5) years have elapsed,

z  Independent auditor's report

Délnitte Actountants B.V. )
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Independent auditor's report

To the shareholders of Karpower International B.V.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 2019
INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

Qur opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements for the year ended November 30, 2019 of
Karpower International B.V., based in Amsterdam.

In our opinion the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of
Karpower International B.V. as at November 30, 2019, and of its result for 2019 in accordance with Part 9 of
Bock 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

The financial statements comprise:

1. The balance sheet as at November 30, 2019,

2. The profit and loss account for the year ended November 30, 201S.

3. The notes comprising a summary of the accounting policies and other explanatery information.
Basis for our opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Dutch law, including the Dutch Standards on Auditing. Our
rasponsibilities under those standards are further described in the "Our responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements” section of our report.

We are independent of Karpower International B.V. in accordance with the “Verordening inzake de
onafhankelijkheid van accountants bij assurance-opdrachten” (ViQ, Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants, a regulation with respect to independence) and other relevant independence regulations in
The Nethertands. Furthermore, we have complied with the “Verordening gedrags- en beroepsregels
accountants” (VGBA, Dutch Code of Ethics).

We believe the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Emphasis of the impact of COVID-19 virus

The coronavirus also impacts Karpower International B.V. Management disclosed the current impact and her
plans to deal with these events or circumstances in page 6 of the financial statements. Management
indicates that it is currently not possible for them to properly estimate the impact of the coronavirus on the
financial performance and health of Karpower International B.V. Our opinion is not modified in respect of
this matter.

Deloitte Accountants B.V. is registered with the Trade Register of the Chamber of Commerce and Industry in Rotterdam number
24362853, Deloitte Accountants B.V. is a Netherlands affiliate of Deloitte NSE LLP, a member firm of Delaitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited.
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REPORT ON THE OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL REPORT '

In addition to the financial statements and our auditor’s report, the financial statements contain other
infermation that consists of:

« The section other information as required by Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code, '
Based on the following procedures performed, we conclude that the other infermation:

+ Is consistent with the financial statements and dees not contain material misstatements.

+« Contains the information as required by Part 8 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

We have read the other information. Based on our knowledge and understanding obtained through our audit

of the financial statements or otherwise, we have considered whether the other information contains

material misstatements.

By performing these procedures, we comply with the requiraments of Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil

Code and the Dutch Standard 720. The scope of the procedures performed is substantially less than the

scope of those performed in our audit of the financial statements.

Management is responsible for the preparation of the other information, including the other information as
required by Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

DESCRIPTION OF RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code. Furthermore, management is responsible for such
internal control as management determines as necessary to enable the preparation of the financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

As part of the preparation of the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the ‘
company'’s ability to continue as a geing concern. Based on the financial reporting framework mentioned,

management should prepare the financial statements using the going concern basis of accounting unless

management either intends to liguidate the company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative

but to do so.

Managerment should disclose events and circumstances that may cast significant doubt on the company’s
ability to continue as a going concem in the financial statements.

Our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objective is to plan and perform the audit assignment in a manner that allows us to obtain sufficient and
appropriate audit evidence for our opinion.

Our audit has been performed with a high, but not absolute, level of assurance, which means we may not
have detected all material errors and fraud.

2009EE2DB9/CP/2
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Misstaternents can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken based on these finandial
statements. The materiality affects the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures and the evaluation of
the effect of identified misstatements on our opinion.

We have exercised professional judgment and have maintained professional skepticism throughout the
audit, in accordance with Dutch Standards on Auditing, ethical requirements and independence
requirements. Our audit included e.g.:

« Identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, designing and performing audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtaining audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

= Obtaining an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the company’s internal control,

+ Evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Concluding on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting, and
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the company to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluating the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures.

« Evaluating whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant findings in internal control that we identify

during our audit.

Amsterdam, September 9, 2020

Deloitte Accountants B.V. Initials for identification purposes:
- A{_,//’
- \’
J. Penén "
L
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of the Directors of
Karpower International B.V.

Report on the Audit of the Special Purpose Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the special purpose consolidated financial statements of Karpower International B.V (“the Company™) and its
subsidiaries (together “the Group’'), which comprise the special purpose consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2019, and the special purpose consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, special purpose
consolidated statement of changes in equity and special purpose consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the special purpose consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying special purpose consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the special
purpose consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2019, and its special purpose consolidated financial
performance and its special purpose consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial stalements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the Intemational Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’™ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the other ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Group's
special purpose consolidated financial statements, and we have fulfilled our other cthical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Special Purpose Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the special purpose consolidated financial statements in
accordance with IFRS s and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material missiatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the special purpose consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability o
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to ccase operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Special purpose consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the special purpose consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 10 influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these special purpose
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit. We also:

» Identify and asscss the risks of material misstatement of the special purpose consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

s Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Groups
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the special purpose consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continuc as a going concern.

» Lvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the special purpose consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the special purpose consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

» Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the
Group to express an opinion on the special purpose consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,

supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

DKT %Aa‘“‘\xl-& OENE"I'M\ vESmwvm p.g.

DRT BAGIMSIZ DENETIM VE SERBEST MUHASEBECTI MALI MUSAVIRLIK A.S.
Member of DELOITTE TOUCHE TOHMATSU LIMITED

Istanbul, 5 June 2020
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KARPOWER INTERNATIONAL B.V.

SPECIAL PURPOSE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

{Amounts expressed in 1S Dollars (“1JSD™) unless otherwise indicated.)

ASSETS Notes 31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 6 172,197,903 219,315,058
Investments 16 87,554,543 2,530,975
Tradc receivables 7 445,560,872 497.372.079
Due fiomrelated parties 22 65,492,074 18,038,868
Inventories 8 42,121,520 29,263,372
Prepaid expenses 9 39,046,789 51,869,751
Other current assets 10 111,951,848 109,742,433
Total current assets 963,931,549 928,132,536
Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 11 3,105,183,580 2,766,548,186
Intangible assets 43,519 65,228
Investment on a joint venture 23 8,821,529 4,806,797
Prepaid expenses 9 16,444,557 19,836,150
Deferred tax assets 21 263,345 108,160
Other non-cument assets 10 3,030,555 -
Total non-current assets 3,133,787,085 2,791,454,521
Total assets 4,097,718,634 3,719,587,057

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these special purpose consolidated financial statements.

DELOITTE TURKEY
STAMPED FOR iDENTIFICATION
PURPOSES ONLY



KARPOWER INTERNATIONAL B.V.

SPECIAL PURPOSE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

{Amounts expressed in US Dollars (“USD™) unless otherwise indicated.)

LIAB Notes 31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Current liabilities

Short term borrowings 12 218,428,377 51,139,047
Short term portion of long term borrowings 12 488 934 685 306,967,359
Trade payables 7 149,688,838 413,071,897
Due to related parties 22 16,434,706 20,598,273
Deferred income L 16,851,433 14,320,648
Current income tax liabilitics 21 6,368,062 11,596,064
Other current liabilities 10 32 858,579 31,334,668
Total current liabilities 929,564,680 849,027,956
Non~current liabilities

Long term borrowmgs 12 840,742,251 989,134,516
Deferred income S 13,220,269 27,513,861
Provisions for employment termination benefits 2,303,095 1,587,645
Deferred tax liabilitics 21 146,993 388,109
Total non-current liabilities 856,412,610 1,018,624,131
Total liahilities 1,785,977,290 1,867,652,087
EQUITY

Share capital 15 851,685,010 571,348,010

Other comprehensive income and expense
that willnot be reclassified to profit orloss

- Revaluation fund 15 793,926,405 639,029,368
- Actuarial (loss)/ gain on employment
termmation benefits (142,11 1) 26,920

Other comprehensive income and expense
that may be reclassificd to profit or loss

- Curnrency translation reserve 2.1 (6,763,531 (7,202,053)
Retained carnings 636,700,081 648,438,085
Equity atiributabte to equity holders of the parent 2,275,405,854 1,851,640,330
Non-controlling interest 36,335,490 294,640
Total equity 2,311,741,344 1,851,934,970
Total liabilities and equity 4,097,718,634 3,719,587,057

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these special purpose consolidated financial statements.

DELOITTE TURKEY
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KARPOWER INTERNATIONAL B.V.

SPECIAL PURPOSE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD 1 JANUARY - 31

DECEMBER 2019
{Amounts expressed in US Dollars (“USD™) unless otherwise indicated.)
1 January - 1 January -
31 December 31 December
Notes 2019 2018
PROFIT OR LOSS
Revenue 17 1,064,149,725 1,228,768,987
Cost ofsales (-} 17 {566,141,568) (760,074,656)
Gross profit 498,008,157 468,694,331
General administrative expenses (-} 18 (72,103,343) (48,588,595)
Other operating income 19 56,706,265 51,969,238
Other operating expenses (-) 19 (72,406,983) (46,161,807)
Share of loss of joint ventures 23 (274,420) (2,502)
Operating profit 409,929,676 425,910,665
Fmmancial income 20 2,476,965 4,369,112
Financial expenses (-) 20 (122,255,721) (86,244,956)
Profit before taxes on income 290,150,920 344,034,821
Taxes on income
Current tax expense 21 (27,781,465) (35,345,160)
Deferred tax expense 21 84,934 (378,564)
Net profit for the year 262,454,389 308,311,097
Net profit for the year attributable to
Equity holders of the parent 262,663,539 308,142,220
Non-controllmg mterest (209,150) 168,877
262,454,389 308,311,097
OTHER COMPHERENSIVE INCOME
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Actuarial (loss) / gain on enployment termination bencfits (169,031) 26,920
Change in fair value of property, plant and equipment 11 169,139,931 224,648,234
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss
Currency transltation diflerences 438,522 (2,245,402)
Other comprehensive income 169,409,422 222,429,752
Total comprehensive income 431,863,811 530,740,849
Total comprehensive income attributable to
Equity holders of the parent 432,072,961 530,571,972
Non-controlling interest (209,150) 168,877
431,863,811 530,740,849

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these special purpose consolidated financial statements.

3 DELOITTE TURKEY
STAMPED FOR IDENTIFICATION
PURPOSES ONLY



ATNO 5380agdNd
NOILVOIZILN3QI H0d J3dWY.LS
AFMENL 3111C73a

“SIUSTIAIE)S [TaUeu] patepi|osuod asodmd [erads asayg) Jo 1red reidaur we wioy sayou Fuikuedwosoe ay],

“AIe1pisgns
2 Ul $35ERD [OLULD U1 NSl 10U op ey setel diysimumo ut sadueyo SuLepisuoo sTmwes paueiar 10 peziuBear ATIPISqRS 2t jO Soreys JO Juaatad PRIl A JO aN[eA 1ISSE 13U A PR PIAT20AI UONRISPISIOY
3U) 1231139 UUAFIP AL (1SN OFT£$9"£9 30 Wnoure we s dnolly "pIT SAUT SO MSHIA 0} ‘parmur] dfsiomo [OWLes] ‘Areipisqns sit Jo sareys AIeutpio g%, plos dnoD affl 6107 J9GHa93(T §T YO fes?

“JOXINOD BOUMEOD 13PUN SaULUS 3L U3dmlaq PISI[BOY $103153 o) Fuuapistiod sSunwres paurelal ul pastufooar 067'761'1 SN JO Sunmowe ‘AJfurpioody “siajstey sateys 2q1 Swmoro)
Honeplosuod "§Y NP ZIusperey Kaxmey of pamysuey st Auedwiod s pottad juenna sy uf AlShemard T A g [euoypRIU] modivy M paYeprosuod usaq pey pajury Awedwo) snudd) dugsiomodnny ()

PRETPLTIET  06P'SEEDE PSESOLSLTT 180°00./ 959 (1£5°€9L'0) SOFO76'C6L (II'TEl)  010'sB IS8 6107 QUi 1€ 1% DUE|Eg
TIR'E9R 1EF {0s1°607) 196'CL0° 7Y 6£5°€99°79T iy 1E66E1°691 (1£0'691) - anoout aatsuaypaduod [g10]
- - - PR IR T - (F6R'TFTFD - - (g1 ;oN} sdiysiemod penjeaaljo uoneiceidapio g suer)
(o6 1z - (£96'6£T1¢E) (L96'6E2108) - - - - uoLNQLISIP PUSPIALL]
0¥ €S9 LY 000'0§¢'9€ 0PTE0F1E 0FTE0F 1E {¢) SOI0 diysioumo ut 25 ur ooy Butuisug junsnipy
067611 - 06T C61°T 06T 2611 - - - - {4} (1 210N) 01102 UOILLE3 J3pun
$3111ud FUTA|0AUY SUOTIIBSURLJO SI2X Y
000'LEE0ST - 000°LEERST - - - - 000'LEC08E aseanut Edey
OLG'PEG LSS T 0P +67 0EE 0PI ISE L S80°8EL'BFY (£50'707'L) 89€620'6EY 02697 0I0'BPEILS 6107 AIenuer [ J8 2uE|eg
Aymba 15213)u1 yuaaed 2y sHuuses A5 punj sured lendes
1810, Juijjonuod saaploy A1mba PAUIEIY uoyBISUEBA} uonEnRAY [LITL LI BAY areyg
“uopN 0] A|qEINGLINY Aaudaan)y

%501 10 11joad 0y ss0] a0 j1j0ad ny

paljIsseda2q Avw 1wy P31JISSE|IS] 3G 10U [{m

asuaiya pun 2moou JBYy) Asuadxa pus aweduy

aaysuayeadwod JagiQ aapsuagaaduod 3O

("Pa1edIpUL SSTMIDPO $SATUN { (IS[),.) STB[[OC] S[] UI passaldxa sunotng}
610T HAIINADAA 1€ AAANT HVIA HHL 404
ALINOA NI SEONVHD A0 INTWALVLS ALVAITOSNOD ASOdMNd TVIDALS

A TVNOLLVNULINI ¥AM0dd VY



ATIND 5350d4dnd
NOILYDIILNIQ! 403 03dWVLS
AIENL 3111071330

"SIUAUIIE)S [RTIUEUT] pateprjosuocd asodmd jerdads asay Jo wred jeiSaun ue wuo] sajou Surduedmosdse ay|,

OBUO) WO
J3PUN SALLE A} UIAMIIY PISI[EAL $303352 a1 Fuuapisucs SSUNLIES PIUIEIaL WL pasINFoal 994°6, 1°4 (1510 Supunonre ‘Aj3mpiosdy 'siaJsuesl sareys ol Sulmo)o] * A d euoneuauf Jamodoey w paieprostod ate
sanredruos asa1 powad juatma 3q1 vy “Asnotaand -§ v BuIp[ol ziuapeley ur pajepriosuod waq pey pry (studs)) Awedwo)) diysiamod zumsperey sdy pue paur Auedwo)) Aag mews() dsIamog ZISPRICY (44 )

"A]8u1p1032€ PaIEISAT 10U AJB S|RIDURUL 1B3K SNOlAId PUE [PLISJEUIUIT PRIAPISUOD 21am SWAlL ALtnDa uaamiag (me g Uiim 3DUepIoae U1 asearam [edes 2a103dsar o o1ep oY) Je saiel sdueyoxa
21p Fwsn Aq SIeJ[O( S 0IU G WOY PaUaAUD sem Auedwio)) ) jo [endeo paralstdal sareys gl Jo anjeA [eunuoy auy (£ 107} (reys d 8 P79 QSN (R1OT) a1eys Jad pg H7g (IS SUINIIG SEY SARYS Areupio
Jo Junoure 3 [ended jo sateys fo uononpar ay Jurwopjod sareys ay jo anjea Jed a1 SwseaIdap gt feides ansst Jo SAIEYS [0 ISQUMU M 300p3L 6) paopap Nwaiewrwr dnoin a1 porad JuRInd 2y Uy (4)

OLEFEG' LSSl Ory'rel DEE 0P ISE'L SRO'BEP'Sry  (ESO°T0T'L) 89C°670'6E9 02697 0TO0'8PETLS B10Z 13quada( [{ 1B IUBIEY
oFR0FLOES LLYHIL LB L5 DES 0LT'THI'S0E (corsrc' o) PETRIIFIT 0T6'9T - awoout aasusyarduos [Epal,
- - - R9¢'660'T1 - (895°660°CT) - - {¢1a0oN) sdiysiamod penjeastjoe uoneaidap)e gy suel]
(000'00F 0EE) - (oo 00F0LD) (D00 D0F 0EE) - - - - UOHNGMISIP pupiad
(999°6L1°4) - (999'6LT°L) (999'641°L) - - - - Cea) (1 2JON) [O1IUOD UATUOO 13PUR
S21ILIUS BULA|OALT SUOTJORSURIITO S)O]
- - - TR 010°0T - - - (Zzg'o1o'olt (4} aszascap 1en1de
[TR 665 TRE - 1T 66E TRE - - - - [TR oL TEE aseasout [ede
996 ELEDLTT  E9LSTL COTBPTILTL 180'S9L'SP0  (159°056°F) 10L08b°9T8 - KL0'656'802 $107 Aavnurp [ IR souE[EY
Amba 153393u1 zand ay) s8ujuina oA punj suigd 1endes
miog, duyonuoa saapjoy Aynba pau w3y UONREBISUBL) uoHEN[EAIY |[BHED)IY anyg
RITIN| 0] 1gqEINqLIN Y L>vanm’y
Aynlyy

sso[ 10 31j0ad o) ssefa0 31 joad o)

PALYISSBPA 3 Arur ):0 18 PAJISSE[I2A 34 JOU ||

asuadxa pue JuroIur 18Y) asuadbxa puy awnodur

assuayaadwed aayip asrsuayaadwiod oy

{ PRIBDIPII 3SIMIBLO SSA[UN (, (IS[),,) SIBJ[OCT S Ut passaadxa spmoury)
6107 YHAAINADHAA 1€ AN AVHA AHL HOA
ALINOA NI SEONVHD 40 INTWALVLS AALVAI'TOSNOD dSOddNd TVIDAdS

‘A TYNOILLYVNYAINT YIMOdd vV



KARPOWER INTERNATIONAL B.V.

SPECIAL PURPOSE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE PERIOD 1 JANUARY - 31 DECEMBER 2019

(Amounts expressed in US Dollars (“USD") unless otherwise indicated.)

1 January - 1 January -
Notes 31 December 2019 31 December 2018
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 173,310,296 77,827,643
Profit for the year 262,454,389 308,311,097
Adjustments to reconcile profit for the year 294,812,410 247,931,186
Deprectation and amortization 17-18 106,935,290 134,304,056
Provision for employment termination benefits 761,656 1,144,582
Interest expensc 240 112,881,280 71,549,447
Interest mcome 20 (1,778,567) (1,677,843)
Provision for doubtful receivables 7 48,183,702 10,519,675
Gain on sale of support vessels 19 (141,902) (3,634,957)
Sharcs ofloss of joint ventures 23 274,420 2,502
Tax provision 21 27,696,531 35,723,724
Changes in net working capital (383,956,503) 478,414,640)
Changes in due fromvdue to related parties (51,616,773 (185,181,153)
Changes i trade receivables 3,621,505 (53,051,338)
Changes in inventories (12,858,148) 27,230,635
Changes i other current and
non current assets and liabilities (2,602,616) (84,640,824)
Changes in prepaid expenses and deferred income (24,061,739) (37,048,902)
Changes in trade payables (263,383,059 (115,244,026)
Taxes paid (33,009,467) (30,411,G85)
Employment termination benefit paid (46,206) (67,947
Net cash usedin investing actimiies (255,813,834) (223,772,572)
Proceeds fromsale of property, plant and equipment 30,796,822 36,156,367
Purchases of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets (264,639.,627) (260,897,578)
Change in blocked deposits (85,023,568) 5,867,438
Proceeds fromdisposal of subsidiary shares 67,653,240 -
Capital paid in associates 23 (4,600,701) (4,899,299)
Cash flows generated from financing activities 36,455,286 321,182,522
Proceeds frombank bomrowings 12 583,828,770 870,652,288
Repayments of bank borrowings 12 (381,633,975) (510,599,688)
Capital increase 15 280,337,000 382,399,821
Interest paid (126,615,109) (92,547,742)
Interest received 20 1,778,567 1,677,843
Dividend payment 15 (321,239,967) (330,400,000)
N . . .
et (decrease)/ increase in cash and cash equivalents | (46,048,252) 175,237,593
Effects of unrealized exchange gains / (loss) on
cash and cash equivalents (1,068,903) (4,912,207)
Cash and cash equivalents
at the beginning of the year 6 219,315,058 48,989,672
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 6 172,197,903 219,315,058

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these special purpose consolidated financial statements,
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KARPOWER INTERNATIONAL B.V.

NOTES TO THE SPECIAL PURPOSE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

{Amounts expressed in US Dollars (“USD") unless otherwise indicated.)

NOTE 1 - ORGANISATION AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Having established in 2010, Karpower International B.V., (the “Group” or “Karpower BV"), is the
holding company for the overseas operations of the Karadeniz Holding A.S. (“Karadeniz Holding™),
which is the ultimate controlling party of the Group. The Group mainly provides administrative services
and coordination for operations in foreign countries.

The Group is registered in the Netherlands and its registered address is De Lairessestraat 154, 1075 HL,
Amsterdam.

As of 31 December 2019, avarage personnel number under payroll of the Group is 591 (2018: 394).

The major subsidiaries of Karpower International B.V. and their nature of operations are as follows:

Subskidiaries Nature of business Segment Country Currency
I Karpowership Indonesia 22 DMCC (“ [ndonesia 2277 Floating power plant services Energy  United Arab Emirates USD
2 Karpowership Indonesia 23 DMCC (* Indonesia 237 Floating power plant services Energy  United Arab Emirates USD
3 Karpowership Indonesia 11 DMCC (- Indonesia L1} Floating power plant services Energy  United Arab Emirates USE
4 Karpowership Indonesia 14 DMCC (“ Indoncsia 14 Floating power plant services Energy  United Arab Emirates 1USD
5 Karpowership Lebanon Company Limited . . .

i Fleating power plant services Energy  Marshall Islands usD

(" Karpowership Lebanon™)
6 Karpowership Indonesia 3 DMCC (" Indonesia 37) Floating power plant services Energy  United Arab Emirates USD
7 Karpowership Lebanon Conpany Limited (Lebanon Branch) ‘ )
Operation offloating power plant Energy Lebanon usD

("Karpowership Lebanon Branch™)
8 Karpowership Lebanon Conpany Limited {Dubai Branch}

. Operation offloating power plant Energy  United Arab Emirates USD
("Karpowership Lebanon DMCC Branch™)

9 Kampowership Americas Company Limited (* KPS Anericas™) Floating power plant services Energy  Marshall Islands usD
10 Karpowership Panans Company.S. De R.L. Fleoating power plant services Energy  Marshall Islands UsD
11 Karadeniz Powership IbrahimBey Company (™ [brahimBey™ Canstruction offloating pewer pla Energy  Marshall Islands usD
12 Karadeniz Powership Mehmet Bey Conmpany (* Mehmet Bey™) Construction offloating power pla Energy  Marshall Islands UsD
13 Karadeniz Powership Ela Sultan Company (* Ela Sultan™) Construction effloating power pla Energy  Marshall Islands s
14 Karadeniz Powership Orka Sultan Company (* Orka Sultan™) Construction offloating power pla Energy  Marshall Islands UISD
1 5 Karadeniz Powership Deniz Sultan Conpany {“ Deniz Sultan™  Floating power plant services Energy  Marshall Islands usD
1 6 Karadeniz Powership Ebru Sultan Coipany (* Ebru Saltan™) Floaling power plant services Energy  Marshall [slands UsD
1 7.Karadeniz Powership Refikat Sultan Company (* Refikat Sultan™ Construction offloating power pla Energy  Marshall Islands Usp
18.Karadeniz Powership Kaya Bey Company (“Kaya Bey™) Floating power plant services Energy  Marshall Islands usD
19.Karadeniz Powership Kaya Bey (SL) Limited (“ Kaya Boy Branch” Floating power plant services Energy  Sierra Leone usD
20 Karadeniz Powership Koray Bey Company (* Koray Bey™} Floating power plant services Energy  Marshall Islands usD
21.Karadeniz Powership Koray Bey Company Limited (Branch) : ) R .
Floating power plant services Energy  Gamnbia uspD
(** Koray Bey Branch™)
22 Karpower Orinet Company Limited ("Orient™ Floating power plant services Encigy  Marshall [slands UsD
23 Kamadeniz Powership Metin Bey Company (“ Metin Bey ") Floating power plant services Energy  Marshall Islands usD
24 Karadeniz Powership Osman Khan Company Linited ) . .
. Floating power plant services Energy  Isle ofMan uUsD
(* Osman Khan™)
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KARPOWER INTERNATIONAL B.V.

NOTES TO THE SPECIAL PURPOSE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

(Amounts expressed in US Dollars {“USD") unless otherwise indicated.)

NOTE 1 - ORGANISATION AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS (Continued)

Subsidiaries Nature of business Segment Country Currency
25.Karpowership [5 DMCC (" [5 DMCC) Floating power piant services Energy United Arab Emirates USD
26 Karpowership 24 DMCC (24 DMCC™) Floating power plant services Energy  United Arab Emirates USD
27 Karadeniz Powership Aysegiil Sulian C ny Lindted Construction and operation of
“z © P Ay3egil Sulian Lompatly Linele ) P Energy  Isle ofMan usp
(" Aysegill Sultan™) floating power plant
28 Karadeniz Powership A il Sultan Company Limited .
R P Ayses . an tompany Floating power plant services Energy  United Arab Emirates USD
{“ Aysegil Sultan DMCC Branch'™)
29 Karadeniz P owership O Bey C any Limited
p Dsnan Bey Company timte Maritinme services Other Marshall Islands USD
("Osman Bey")
30 Karpowership Bagan Cowpany Limited .
P o p & any Floating power plant services Energy  Mynamare usn
("Karpowership Bagan"}
31 Karpowership AsiaC any Prvate Limited X ) .
P 1 1p. A crpany “ Floating power plant services Energy  Singapore usD
(* Karpowership Asia™)
32 Karadeniz Powership Lataml Company {imifed ("Latami"j (2] Floating power plant services Energy  Maita USsp
33 Karadeniz Powership Latam? Company Limited ("Eatan2") (2) Fioaling power plant services Energy  Malta TUSD
34 Karadeniz Powership Latamd Company Linnted {("Latam3 ) {2) Floating power plant services Energy  Mslia UsD
35 Karpowership West Affica Ventures Company Ltd . .
. i Floating power plant services Energy  Ghana GHS
("West Afica™ (2)
361 imited Liability Company Best Solar ("Best Solar) (21 Solarenergy Energy  Uhkrain UAH
37 Karpowership Scnegal ("Karpowership Senegal™) (2) Floaling power plant services Encrgy  Senegal CFA
318 Karpowership Mauritius Conpany L imézed , . .
arpowers P . ;.u:. mpany Floating power plant <ervices Energy  Mauritius Ush
("Karpowership Mauritius™ {2)
39 Karpowesship SA Proprietary Limiied (2) Floating power planl services Energy  South Africa uUsb
40 KPS Powership SA (PTY) Limated (2) Floating power plant services Energy  South Afiica uUsh
41 PTKar Powership Indanesia Conpany Limited .
. Floating power plant services Energy Indonesia usp
(“PTindonesia™)
42 Karpowership Mozambique Company Limitada . . .
. Floating puwer plant services Fnergy  Mozambique USsD
{* Karpowership Mozambique Limitada™
43 Karpower Ghana Finance Savices BV, ) . .
X Financing Energy  Netherland Usp
(“ Ghana Finance™}
44 Karpower Indonesia Finas Servi BV
power nee Sefvees Financing Eneray  Netherland usD
(* Indongsia Finance™)
45 Karpower LatamCompany (* Karpower Latam™) ([) Ficating power plant services Energy  England GBP
46 Karpowership UK Lid. (" Karpowership UK™) (1} Floating power plant services Energy  England GBRP
47 Karadeniz Holdings Limited {* Karadeniz Holdings™) Heolding Conpany Energy Malta usp
48 Karmarine Karadeniz Denizeilik ve Ticarel A S .
, . Sparc parts trading Energy  Turkey 1L
¢ Karmarine A.5."")
49 Karmarine Karadeniz Denizcilik ve Ticaret A.S. Serbest Bdlge .
. Spare parts trading Encrgy  Turkey TL
(* Karmasine Desbas™
50 Karpowership Ghana C 7 i
Apotwers 'lp ana Company Limited Floaling power plant seevices Energy  Ghana 7S
{Karpowership Ghana)
51 Karadeniz Powership Gokhan Bey C an .
s pH ey Company Floating power plant services Energy  Marshall Islands Usp
(" Gdkhun Bey™
52 Karadeniz Powership Orhan Bey ¢ n .
. P y Lompany Floating pewer plant services Energy  Marshall Islands UsD
(~ Orhan Bey™)
53 Karadeniz Powership Yasin Bey Compan
i . e ¥ Lompany Fioating power plant services Energy  Marshall Islands uUsh
(*Yasin Bey")
54 Karadeniz Powership Zeynep Sultan Company Limited
'p feyiep 3 Teany Floating power plant services Frergy  Isle ofMan uUsDp

(* Zeynep Sultan™)
535 Karpower International DMCC

(* International DMCC™)
56 Powership Operation DMCC
(* Operation DMCC™)
57 Karpowershipyurd RaufBey Company

Floating power plants services Energy  Uniled Arab Emirates USD

Floating power plants services Energy  United Arab Euntates USD

Floating power plant services Ener Marshall Islands 1USD
(* Rau fBey™) P gy
58 Karpowership Irag Company Limited
P p 4 Lompany Floating power plant services Energy  Marshall Islands usn
{* Karpowership Irag™)
59 Karpowership Irag Company [.imited . . : .
. Floating power plant services Energy  United Arab Emirates USD
(DMCC Branch)
60 Karadeniz Powership Suheyla Sultan Compal X
“ 1p Suheyla Sultan Lompany Floating power plant services Energy  Marshall Islands USD

(** Subeyla Sujtan”)
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KARPOWER INTERNATIONAL B.V.

NOTES TO THE SPECIAL PURPOSE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

(Amounts expressed in US Dollars (*USD™) unless otherwise indicated. }

NOTE 1- ORGANISATION AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS (Continued)

Subsidiaries Nature of business Segment Country Currency
61 Karadeniz Powership Yurdanur Sultan Compan
P pany Floating power plant services Energy  Marshall Islands UsD
(** Yurdanur Sultan™)
62 Karaden:z Powership Esra Sultan Company
Floating power plantservices Energy  Marshall Islands usp
{* Esra Sultan™)
63 Karpowership Mozambique Company Limmted
P P 4 rpany Floating power plant services FEnergy  Marshall Islands UsD

(* Karpowership Mozambigue MI™)
61.Karpowership Energy (Nambia) (Proprietary) (* Karpowership

Namibia™ Floating power plant services Energy  Namibiz NAD
635 Karadeni1z Powership 25 DMCC (25 DMCC" ) (2) Floating power piant services Energy  Uniled Arab Emurates USD
66 Mozambigue Powership DMCC (** Mozambiaque DMCC™ ) (2) Floating power plant services Energy  United Arab Emarates USD
67 Karmnl Powership Company Limited {"Karmol Powership™ Holding Company Energy  Malia UsD
68 Karpower LatamCompany Limted {Argentine Branch) Floating power plant services Energy  Argentina UusD
69 Karpower [nternational DMCC GB - Fillial, SA {2) Floating power plant services Energy  Umled Arab Enurates USD
70 Karpowership Uk Ports & Shore Power Limited (1) Floating power plant services Energy England GBP
71.Karpowership UK GI'P Limuted {1) Floating power plant services Energy England GBP
72 Karpowership Global B.V.{2) Floating power plant services Energy  Netherland usD
73 Karpower International B.V. (" Karpower BV.") Coordination offoreign entities  Energy  The Netherlands USD

(1) These subsidiaries are controlled and consolidated by the Group, where the Directors have taken the exemption from having an audit
of its financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019. This exemption is taken in accordance with Companies Act s479A.
(2) The companies has established in 2015.

Joint ventures Nature of business Segment Country Currency
Kamol Lng Company Limited ("Karmol Leg™{1) Holding Company Energy Malta usp
m As of 31 December 2019, the joint ventures’s current assets, non-current assets, short-term and long-term liabilities and shareholders’

equity, which are consolidated with the equity method in accordance with 1AS 28,

The Group and its subsidiaries are referred to as the “Group” in the special purpose consolidated
financial statements.

Main operations of the Group
Lebanon

Karpowership Lebanon has signed an agreement with the Republic of Lebanon Ministry of Energy and
Water for and on behalf of Electricite du Liban (“EDL") on 13 July 2012 for Energy Conversion Works.
KPS 7 Orhan Bey and KPS 9 Fatmagiil Sultan floating power plants have been operating since 31 March
2013. Karpowership Lebanon is responsible for providing 370 MW of energy with guaranteed
availability 90%.

Ghana

Karpowership Ghana has signed an agreement with the Electricity Company of Ghana Limited (“ECG™)
on 5 June 2014 for Power Delivery Services as operation company. KPS 12 Osman Khan floating power
plant owned by Karadeniz Powership Osman Khan Company (ship company) is responsible for
providing 450 MW of energy with guaranteed availability 93%.

Sudan

Karen Dis Ticaret ve Enerji A.S. (a related party) signed a power purchase agreement with Sudanese
Thermal Power Generating Company on 10 April 2018, Contract is take and pay, operations started on
May 2018.

KPS 5 Kaya Bey owned by Kapowership Iraq Company continues its operations.
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KARPOWER INTERNATIONAL B.V.

NOTES TO THE SPECIAL PURPOSE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

(Amounts expressed in US Dollars (“USD™} unless otherwise indicated.)

NOTE 1 - ORGANISATION AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS (Continued)
Indonesia

PT Indonesia has signed five agreement with the PT PLN (“Persero”} to supply electricity in 5
different islands of the Indonesian Archipelago as operation company.

First floating power plant, KPS 11 Zeynep Sultan floating power plant owned by Karpowership
Indonesia |1 DMCC Company has arrived in Amurang, North Sulawesi and started operations on
January 2016. Second powership KPS 52 Nezih Bey has arrived to North Sulavesi, Amurang and started
operations under the KPS 11 Zeynep Sultan contract on September 2018. Total contract capacity is 120
MW with guaranteed availability 80%.

Third floating power plant, KPS 22 Gokhan Bey floating power plant owned by Karpowership Indonesia
22 DMCC has arrived in Kupang, East Nusa Tenggara and started operations on December 2016. Total
contract capacity is 60 MW with guaranteed availability 80%.

Forth floating power plant, KPS 23 Yasin Bey floating power plant owned by Karpowership Indonesia
23 DMCC has arrived in Ambon and started operations on April 2017. Total contract capacity is 60 MW
with guaranteed availability 80%.

Fifth tloating power plant, KPS 14 Onur Sultan floating power plant owned by Karpowership Indonesia
14 DMCC has arrived in Medan and started operations on June 2017. Total contract capacity is 240 MW
with guaranteed availability 80%.

Mozambique

International DMCC signed Time Charter and Support Vessel Contract with the Electricidade De
Mogambique E.P. (EDM) on || March 2018 as operation company. KPS 6 frem Sultan floating power
plant owned by Operation DMCC Company (ship company) was responsible for providing 48 MW of
energy untill the end of November 2019. From this date KPS 25 Mehmet Bey floating power plant
owned by Karadeniz Powership 25 DMCC (ship company) has been responsible for providing energy
according to addendum signed on 28 August 2019. In connection with this addendum a novation
agreement was signed on 3 December 2019 regarding to transfer of International DMCC interests, rights
and obligations to Mozambique Powership DMCC as new operation company.

Gambia

Koray Bey (operation and ship company) signed a Power Purchase Agreement (“PPA™) with the Gambia
National Water and Electricity Company (“NAWEC™) on 20 April 2018, The contract was extended on
2 May 2020 for 48 months. KPS 50 Koray Bey floating power plant is responsible for providing 30 MW
of energy with guaranteed availability 80%.

On 8 May 2018, the Company has registered a branch (the "Branch™) in Gambia; Karadeniz Powership
Koray Bey Company Limited (Branch). The registered address of the Branch is Kanifing, Kanifing
Municipality, The Gambia.

Guinea Bissau

Karpower International DMCC has signed a power purchase agreement with the Electricidade E Aguas
da Guinea Bissau (“EAGB™) on 28 January 2019 as operation company. KPS 51 Metin Bey floating
power plant owned by Metin Bey Company is responsible for providing 17 MW of energy.
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KARPOWER INTERNATIONAL B.V.

NOTES TO THE SPECIAL PURPOSE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

{Amounts expressed in US Dollars (*“USD™) unless otherwise indicated. )

NOTE 1 - ORGANISATION AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS (Continued)

Sierra Leone

On 11 June 2018, Kaya Bey Company finalised the terms of its Utility Grid Infrastructure & Electricity
Supply Agreement with Electricity Distribution and Supply Authority (EDSA), Ministry of Energy
(MOE), and Ministry of Finance and Economic Development (MOF) of Sierra Leone Government (the
“Customer™} in respect of its powership.

KPS 3 Dogan Bey floating power plant provides 30 MW for seven months and 15 MW for five months
of each operational year.

The commencement of commercial operations was achieved on 11 June 20£8 in Freetown, Sierra Leone.

On 25 June 2018, the Company has registered a branch (the "Branch") in Sierra Leone; Karadeniz
Powership Kaya Bey (SL) Limited. The registered address of the Branch is 17 Percival Street, 2nd Floor,
Freetown.

On December 20th, 2018, the Company signed an addendum to the agreement dated June 11th, 2018,
for capacity expansion. According to this addendum KPS 53 Géktay Bey started operations on 31 March
2019 for providing 20 MW for seven months and 15 MW for five months of each operational year.

Senegal

Karpowership 15 DMCC has signed an equipment rental contract with Senegal Electricity Company
(“SENELEC™) on 8 Auguyst 2019 as ship company. Karpowership Senegal has signed an operating and
maintenance service contract with Senelec on 8 August 2019 as operation company. KPS 10 Aysegiil
Sultan floating power plant is responsible for providing 120 MW of energy.

Cuba

Karen Dis Ticaret ve Enerji A.S. (a related party) signed an electricity supply services contract with La
Empresa [mportadore y exportadora de objektivos electroenergeticos on 27 October 2018 as operation
company for three floating power plants.

KPS 54 Bans Bey and KPS 60 Esra Sultan floating power plants owned by Karadeniz Powership Latam
| Company and Karadeniz Powership Latam 2 Company respectively started operations on August
2019. KPS 62 Ela Sultan floating power plant owned by Karadeniz Powership Latam 3 Company started
operations on November 2020, Total contract capacity is 144 MW with guaranteed availability 93%.

Karadeniz Holdings

Karadeniz Holdings was established in 2016 in Malta. The principal activity of the company is to be
holding company for the overseas operations of the certain Karadeniz Group companies and provide
administrative services and coordination for operations in foreign countries.

Karmarine A.S.

The company started its operations in 2008, it engages in rendering of various services and spare parts
to maritime and energy sectors and especially operates in the activities of consultancy, organizational
services and vessel administrative services in the construction process of floating power plants.
Karmarine A.3. owns a shipyard in Yalova region. Karmarine A.$.’s branch Karmarine Desbas
commenced its operations on 29 March 2012 in [stanbul Industry and Trade Free Zone Founder and
Operating Co. The branch deals with the activities of selling machinery, equipment and spare parts.

11

DELQITTE TURKEY
STAMPED FOR IDENTIFICATION
PURPOSES ONLY



KARPOWER INTERNATIONAL B.V.

NOTES TO THE SPECIAL PURPOSE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

(Amounts expressed in US Dollars (*USD"”) unless otherwise indicated.)

NOTE 1 - ORGANISATION AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS (Continued)

Karmol LNG

Karmo!l ENG Company Limited was established on 22 October 2018. The principal activity of the
company is to be holding company for the FSRU (Floating Storage Regasification Unit) operations of
the certain Karadeniz Group companies and provide administrative services and coordination for FSRU
operations in foreign countries,

Karmol Powership

Karmol Powership Limited was established on 6 December 2018. The principal activity of the Company
is to be a Holding structure for the Mozambique operations and provide administrative services and
coordination.

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF SPECIAL PURPOSE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1 Basis of Presentation

The special purpose consolidated tinancial statements of Karpower International B.V. have been prepared
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standats (IFRS). Karpower International B.V. and
its foreign subsidiaries maintain their books of account in accordance with the laws and regulations in
force in the countries in which they are registered. These special purpose consolidated financial statements
in US Dellars (*USD™) are based on the historical cost convention except for certain property plant and
equipments (floating power planis) which are expressed at their fair values.

In line with the regulation in Nederland, the Group prepares its financial statements on a standalone
basis. Accompanying “special purpose™ consolidated financial statements are aimed to present the
Group’s consolidated financial position as at 31 December 2019 and its consolidated financial
performance for the year then ended.

Functional and Presentation Currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency™). The
special purpose consolidated financial statements are presented in USD, which is the presentation
currency of the Group.

The results and financial position of all the Group entities that have a functional currency different from
the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

. Assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing rate at the date
of that balance sheet,
. Income and expenses for each income statement are translated at average exchange rates uniess

this average is not reasonable approximate of the cumulative effect of the prevailing on the
transaction dates in which case income and expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of the
transactions, and

. All resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of equity {currency
translation reserve), in other comprehensive income.
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KARPOWER INTERNATIONAL B.V.

NOTES TO THE SPECIAL PURPOSE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

{Amounts expressed in US Dollars (“USD") unless otherwise indicated. )

NOTE 2- BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF SPECIAL PURPOSE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2 Comparative information and restatement of prior period financial statements

In order to allow the determination of financial position and performance, the Group's special purpose
consolidated financial statements are prepared in comparison with the previous period. In order to
comply with the presentation of special purpose consolidated financial statements the current period
when deemed necessary, comparative information is reclassified, and material differences are presented.

2.3 Changes in International Accounting Standards and IFRS

a) New and amended IFRS Standards that are effective for the current year

IFRS 16 Leases

Amendments to [IFRS 9 Prepavment Features with Negative Compensation

IFRS Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Amendments to [AS 28 Long-term Interests in  Associates and Joint
Ventures

Amendments to IAS 19 Employee Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

Benefits

Annual Improvements to [FRS Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations,

Standards 2015-2017 Cycle IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements, IAS 12 Income Taxes

and IAS 23 Borrowing Costs
Impact of initial application of IFRS 16 leases

In the current year, the Group has applied IFRS 16 Leases (as issued by the IASB in January 2016) that
is effective for annual periods that begin on or after 1 January 2019.

IFRS 16 introduces new or amended requirements with respect to lease accounting. It introduces
significant changes to lessee accounting by removing the distinction between operating and finance lease
and requiring the recognition of a right-of-use asset and a lease Liability at commencement for all leases,
except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets when such recognition exemptions are
adopted. In contrast to lessee accounting, the requirements for lessor accounting have remained largely
unchanged.

Amendments to IFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

The Group has adopted the amendments to [FRS 9 for the first time in the current year. The amendments
to IFRS 9 clarify that for the purpose of assessing whether a prepayment feature meets the ‘solely
payments of principal and interest’ (SPPI) condition, the party exercising the option may pay or receive
reasonable compensation for the prepayment irrespective of the reason for prepayment. In other words,
financial assets with prepayment features with negative compensation do not automatically fail SPPL

TFRS Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

This interpretation addresses the determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses,
unused tax credits and tax rates, when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under IAS 12,

Amendments to IAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures

This amendment clarifies that an entity applies IFRS 9 Financial Instruments to long-term interests in
an associate or joint venture that form part of the net investment in the associate or joint venture but to
which the equity method is not applied.

These standards, amendments and improvements have no impact on the consolidated financial position
and performance of the Group.
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KARPFOWER INTERNATIONAL B.V.

NOTES TO THE SPECIAL PURPOSE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

(Amounts expressed in US Dollars (*USD™) unless otherwise indicated.)

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF SPECIAL PURPOSE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2.3 Changes in International Accounting Standards and IFRS (Continued)
b) New and amended IFRS Standards that are effective for the current year
Amendments to IAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures

This amendment clarifies that an entity applies IFRS 9 Financial Instruments to long-term interests in
an associate or joint venture that form part of the net investment in the associate or joint venture but to
which the equity method is not applied.

Amendments to IAS 19 Employee Benefits Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

The amendments clarify that the past service cost (or of the gain or loss on settlement) is calculated by
measuring the defined benefit liability (asset) using updated assumptions and comparing benefits offered
and plan assets before and after the plan amendment (or curtailment or settlement) but ignoring the effect
of the asset ceiling (that may arise when the defined benefit plan is in a surplus position).

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015 2017 Cvcle include amendments to IFRS 3 Business
Combinations and [FRS 11 Joint Arrangements in when a party that participates in, but does not have
joint control of, IAS 12 Income Taxes; income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, and IAS
23 Borrowing Costs in capitalized borrowing costs.

b) New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not yet adopted the following standards and amendments and interpretations to the
existing standards:

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

TFRS 10 and IAS 28 (amendments) Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture

Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations

Amendments to IAS | Presentation of Financial Statements

Amendments to IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors

Conceptual Framework Amendments to References to the Conceptual

Framework in IFRS Standards
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

[FRS 17 requires insurance liabilities to be measured at a current fulfilment value and provides a more
uniform measurement and presentation approach for all insurance contracts. These requirements are
designed to achieve the goal of a consistent, principle-based accounting for insurance contracts. IFRS
17 supersedes IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts as of 1 January 2021.

14
DELOITTE TURKEY

STAMPED FOR IDENTIFICATION

PURPOSES ONLY




KARPOWER INTERNATIONAL B.V.

NOTES TO THE SPECIAL PURPOSE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

(Amounts expressed in US Dollars (“USD”) unless otherwise indicated.)

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF SPECIAL PURPOSE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2.3  Changes in International Accounting Standards and IFRS (Continued)
b) New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective (Continued)

IFRS 10 and TAS 28 (amendments) Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 deal with situations where there is a sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture. Specifically, the amendments state that
gains or losses resulting from the loss of control of a subsidiary that does not contain a business in a
transaction with an associate or a joint venture that is accounted for using the equity method, are
recognised in the parent’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in that
associate or joint venture. Similarly, gains and losses resulting from the remeasurement of investments
retained in any former subsidiary (that has become an associate or a joint venture that is accounted for
using the equity method) to fair value are recognised in the former parent’s profit or loss only to the
extent of the unrelated investors” interests in the new associate or joint venture.

The effective date of the amendments has yet to be set by the IASB; however, earlier application of the
amendments is permitted. The directors of the Group anticipate that the application of these amendments
may have an impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements in future periods should such
transactions arise.

Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations

The definition of “business” is important because the accounting for the acquisition of an activity and
asset group varies depending on whether the group is a business or only an asset group. The definition
of “business” in IFRS 3 Business Combinations standart has been amended. With this change:

* By contirming that a business should include inputs and a process; clarified that the process
should be essential and that the process and inputs should contribute significantly to the creation
of outputs.

¢ The definition of a business has been simplified by focusing on the definition of goods and
services offered to customers and other income from ordinary activities.

e An optional test has been added to facilitate the process of deciding whether a Group acquired
a business or a group of assets.

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IAS 8 Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors - Definition of Material

The amendments in Definition of Material (Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS B) clarify the definition of
‘material’ and align the definition used in the Conceptual Framework and the standards.
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NOTES TO THE SPECIAL PURPOSE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF SPECIAL PURPOSE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2.3 Changes in International Accounting Standards and IFRS (Continued)

b) New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective (Continued)
Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards

Together with the revised Conceptual Framework, which became effective upon publication on 29
March 2018, the IASB has also issued Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in
IFRS Standards. The document contains amendments to IFRS 2, IFRS 3, IFRS 6, IFRS 14, IAS 1, IAS
8, IAS 34, IAS 37, [AS 38, IFRIC 12, [FRIC 19, [FRIC 20, IFRIC 22, and SIC-32. Not all amendments,
however, update those pronouncements with regard to references to and quotes from the framework so
that they refer to the revised Conceptual Framework. Some pronouncements are only updated to indicate
which version of the Framework they are referencing to (the IASC Framework adopted by the [ASB in
2001, the IASB Framework of 2010, or the new revised Framework of 2018) or to indicate that
definitions in the Standard have not been updated with the new definitions developed in the revised
Conceptual Framework. The amendments, where they actually are updates, are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020, with early application permitted.

These standards, amendments and improvements have no impact on the consolidated financial position
and performance of the Group.

NOTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
3.1 Basis of consolidation

The special purpose consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the parent company,
Karpower International B.V. and its subsidiaries on the basis set out in sections below. The financial
statements of the companies included in the scope of consolidation have been prepared as of the date of
the special purpose consolidated financial statements and have been prepared in accordance with [FRS.
The results of subsidiaries are recognized since the beginning of year.

Subsidiaries

Karpower International B.V. controls a subsidiary when it is exposed, or has nghts, to variable returns
from its involvement with the subsidiary and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the subsidiary. Karpower International B.V. has power over a subsidiary when Karpower International
B.V. has existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities that significantly
affect the subsidiary’s returns. Power arises from rights and the existence and effect of potential voting
rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether the Karpower
International B.V. controls another entity.

Subsidiaries, including the structured entities, are the companies controlled by the Group. The Group’s
conirol is provided by the ability to affect the variable returns through its power over the subsidiaries.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the control is transferred to the Group and are no
longer consolidated from the date that contro! ceases.

The balance sheets and staternents of profit or loss of the subsidiaries are consolidated on a line-by-line
basis and the carrying value of the investment held by Karpower International B.V. and its subsidiaries is
eliminated against the related equity. Intercompany transactions and balances between Karpower
International B.V. and its subsidiaries are eliminated on consolidation. The cost of, and the dividends
arising from, shares held by Karpower Intemational B.V. in its subsidiaries are eliminated from equity and
income for the year, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE SPECIAL PURPOSE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

341 Basis of consolidation (Continued)
Subsidiaries (Continued)

Financial statements of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures that are operating in foreign countries
are prepared in accordance with applicable laws and regulations in countries in which they are registered
and required adjustments and reclassifications are reflected for the purpose of fair presentation in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policies.

[f the Group companies’ functional currency is different from its presentation currency, the functional
currency is translated into the presentation currency as follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are transiated at the closing rate at the date
of that balance sheet,
- Income and expenses for each income statement are translated at average exchange rates; and all

resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of equity and statements
of comprehensive income (currency translation reserve).

When a foreign operation is partially disposed of or sold, exchange differences recorded in equity are
recognised in the income statement as part of the gain or loss on sale. Goodwill and fair value
adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate.

Changes in ownership rates that do not resull in control ceases in the subsidiaries

Changes ownership interests in a subsidiary that do not result in losing control of the subsidiary are
equity transactions. These transactions are the transactions that are made among shareholders. The
difference between the net book value of the acquired assets of a subsidiary and the fair value of
consideration paid for these assets are accounted for under equity. Gains or losses arising from the sale
of non-controlling interests are presented under equity.

Disposal of a subsidiary

If the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it recognizes any investment retained in the former subsidiary
at its fair value when control is lost and any difference between the fair value and net book value of
investment is accounted for as gain or loss. That fair value shall be regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or joint venture. Additionally, assets and liabilities that were previously recognized as other
comprehensive income attributable to that subsidiary are accounted for as if those were disposed of the
Group. This may result in a fact that these amounts previously recognized as other comprehensive
income may be classified to profit or loss.

Non-controlling interests

The minority shares in the net assets and operating results of subsidiaries are separately classified in the
special purpose consolidated balance sheets and statement of profit or loss as “non-controlling interests™.
Certain Karadeniz Family members and companies controlled by them have interests in the share capital
of certain subsidiaries. In the special purpose consolidated financial statements, these interests of the
Karadeniz Family members and companies controlled by them are treated as non-controlling interests and
are not included in the Group’s net assets and profits attributable to shareholders.
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NOTES TO THE SPECIAL PURPOSE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.1 Basis of consolidation (Continued)
Non-controlling interests (Continued)

The Group applies a policy of treating transactions with non-controlling interests as transactions with
owners of the parent. Regarding the purchases from non-controlling interests, the difference between any
cansideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is
deducted from equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests are also accounted for under
equity, For disposals to non-controlling interests, differences between any proceeds received and the
relevant share of non-controlling interests are also accounted for under equity.

Transactions involving entities under common control

Legal mergers involving entities under Group’s control are not considered within the scope of
IFRS 3 - “Business Combinations” and no goodwill is recognized for such combinations in this regard.
Additionally, transactions between entities subject to legal mergers are adjusted during preparation of
special purpose consolidated financial statements. Assets and liabilities subject to business combination
recognized at their carrying amounts for the accounting of share transfers between entities under commeon
control. Business combinations involving entities under common control are accounted for using “Pooling
of Interest Method™”. Applying this method, financial statements have been adjusted as if the acquisition
was made as of the beginning of the relevant reporting period in which the common control was carried
out and they are presented comparatively as of the beginning of the relevant reporting period. As a result
of these transactions neither goodwill nor bargain purchase is recognized. The difference arising in the
elimination of the carrying value of the investment held and share capital of the acquired company is
directly accounted as “Effects of transactions involving entities under cotnon contiol” under retained
earnings.

The table below sets out the major subsidiaries and shows the proportion of ownerships interest:

Subsidiaries 2019 2018 2019 2018
1. Indonesia 22 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
2. Indonesia 23 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
3. Indonesia 11 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
4, Indonesia 14 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
5. Karpowership Lebanon 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
6, Indonesia 3 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
7. Karpowership Lebanon Branch 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
&, Kampowership Lebanon DMCC Branch 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
9, KPS Americas 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
19.Karpowership Panama Company, 8. De RL. 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
11. ibrahim Bey 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
12. Mchmet Bey 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
13. Ela Sultan 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
14. Orka Sultan 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
15, Deniz Sultan 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
16. Fbru Sultan 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
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NOTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.1 Basis of consolidation (Continued)
Direct and indirect
ovwnership interest Proportion of
held by Karpover BV (%) effective interest (%)
Subsidiaries 2019 2018 2019 2018
17. Refakat Sultan 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
18. Kaya Bey 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
16. Kaya Bey Branch 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
20. Koray Bey 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
21. Koray Bey Branch 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
22, Orient 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
23. Metin Bey 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
24. Osman Khan 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
25.Kampowership 15 DMCC 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
26.Karpowership 24 DMCC 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
27. Ayseglil Sultan 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
28. Aysegiil Sultan DMCC Branch 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
29. Osman Bey 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
30. Karpowership Bagan 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
31. Kampowership Asia 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
32. Lataml 100.00 - 100.00 -
33. Latam? 100.00 - 100.00 -
34 Latan3 100.00 - 100.00 -
35, West Africa 100.00 - 100.00 -
36. Best Solar 100.00 - 100.00 -
37. Karpowership Senegal 100.00 - 100.00 -
38. Karpowership Mauritius 100.00 - 100.00 -
39. Karpowership SA Proprietary 100.00 - 100.00 -
40. KPS Powership SA (PTY) 100.00 - 100.00 -
41. PT Indonesia 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
42. Karpowership Mozambique Limitada 95.00 95.00 95.00 95.00
43. Ghana Finance 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
44. Indonesia Finance 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
45. Karpower Latam £00.00 106.00 100.00 100.00
46. Karpowership UK 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
47. Karadeniz Holdings 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
48. Karmarine A.S. 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
49, Karmanne Desbag 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
50. Karpowership Ghana 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
51. Gokhan Bey 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
52. Orhan Bey 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
53. Yasin Bey 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
54. Zeynep Sultan 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
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NOTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.1 Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Direct and indirect

ownership interest Proportion of

held by Karpower BV (%) effective interest (%)

Subsidiaries 2019 2018 2019 2018
55. Intemational DMCC 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
56. Operation DMCC 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
57. Rauf Bey 100.00 160.00 100.00 100.00
58. Karpowers hip Iraq 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
59. DMCC Branch 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.60
60. Suheyla Sultan 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
61. Yurdanur Sultan 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
62. Fsra Sultan 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
63. Karpowership Mozambique M1 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
64. Karpowership Namibia 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
65. Karadeniz Powership 25 DMCC 100.00 - 100.00 .
66. Mozambique Powership DMCC 100.00 - 100.00 -
67. Kanmol Powership 75.00 100.00 75.00 100.00
68. Argentine Branch 100.00 160.00 100.00 100.00
69. Karpower International DMCC GB 100.00 - 100.00 -
70. Karpowers hip Uk Ports & Shore Power 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
71. Karpowcership UK GTP Limited 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
72. Karpowership Global B.V. 100.00 - 100.00 -
73. Karpower B.V. 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.60

Direct andindirect

ownership interest Proportion of

held by Karpower BV (%) effective interest (%o )

Joint Ventures 2019 2018 2019 2018
1. Karmol Lng 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00

3.2 Revenue
Revenue

The Group recognizes revenue when the goods or services is transferred to the customer and when
performance obligation is fulfilled. Electricity is generated to be transferred when the control belongs to
the customer.

The Group recognizes revenue based on the following main principles:

a) Identification of customer contracts

b) Identification of performance obligations

¢} Determination of transaction price in the contract

d) Aliocation of price to performance obligations

e) Recognition of revenue when the performance obligations are fulfilled.
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NOTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Revenue (Continued)
Revenue

The Group recognized revenue from its customers only when all of the following criteria are met:

a) The parties to the contract have approved the contract (in writing, orally or in accordance with other
customary business practices) and are cornmitted to perform their respective obligations,

b) Group can identify each party’s rights regarding the goods or services to be transferred,

¢) Group can identify the payment terms for the goods or services to be transferred;

d) The contract has commercial substance,

e) It is probable that the Group will collect the consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for
the goods or services that will be transferred to the customer. In evaluating whether collectability of an
amount of consideration is probable, an entity shall consider only the customer’s ability and intention
to pay that amount of consideration when it is due.

At the contract inception date, the Group evaluates the goods and services committed to be provided to
the customer based on the contract and identifies each commitment as a separate performance obligation.
In addition to that, the Group determines whether it satisfies the performance obligation over time or
satisfies the performance obligation at a point in time.

Revenue from the sale and delivery of electricity is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. The estimated value of the electricity supplied but not invoiced to the customers
is considered for the measurement of revenue.

Floating power plant rent income

As described in Note I, the Group signed agreements for electricity sales through operating floating
power plants. Such agreements are classified as operating leases and rental assets have been classified
under property, plant and equipment in the consolidated statement of financial position and rent income
generated for the rental period is reflected to the consolidated statement of profit or loss within the
context of the rental agreements.

Sale of goods

Trading income is recognized on an accrual basis at the time when risk is transferred, the amount of
revenue can be measured reliably, and it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group at the fair value of considerations received or receivable.
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NOTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.3 Reclated parties
Parties are considered related to the Group if;

(a) directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, the party

(i) controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with the Group (this includes parent,
subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries);

(i has an interest in the Group that gives it significant influence over the Group; or

{1ii) has joint control over the Group;

(b) the party is an associate of the Group;

(c) the party is a joint venture in which the Group is a venturer;

{d) the party is member of the key management personne! of the Group as its parent;

(&) the party is a close member of the family of any individual referred to in (a) or (d);

(f) the party is an entity that is controlled or significantly influenced by, or for which significant

voting power in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual referred to in (d) or (e);

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligation between related parties,
regardless of whether a price is charged.

For the purpose of these special purpose consolidated financial statements, shareholders, key
management personnel and members of Board of Directors, in each case together with their families and
companies controlled by or affiliated with them are considered and referred to as related parties {Note
22).

3.4 Property, plant and equipment

Floating power plants are shown at fair value, based on valuations by extemnal independent valuer, less
subsequent depreciation. Valuations are performed with sufficient regularity to ensure that the fair value
of a revalued asset does not differ materially from its carrying amount. Any accumulated depreciation at
the date of the revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset, and the net amount
is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. All other equipment is stated at historical cost less
depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Increases in carrying amount arising from revaluation of floating power planis are credited to special
purpose other comprehensive income and shown as revaluation reserve in shareholders' equity.
Decreases that offset previous increases of the same asset are charged in special purpose other
comprehensive income and debited against revaluation reserve directly in equity; all other decreases are
charged to the statement of special purpose comprehensive income. Each vyear the difference between
depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset charged to the statement of special
purpose comprehensive income, and depreciation based on the asset's original cost is transferred from
‘revaluation reserve' to ‘retained earnings'.
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NOTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measuvred reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of special purpose
comprehensive income during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight line method to allocate the assets cost over
their expected useful lives, as follows:

Years
Land improvements 7
Floating power plants 15-25
Motor vehicles 4-8
Furniture and fixtures 4

The asset's residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate periodically. An
asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposal of equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying
amount and are recognised in statement of special purpose comprehensive income.

3.5 Intangible assets

[ntangible assets include rights and computer software. They are recorded at acquisition cost and
acquired software certificates are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives for
a period not exceeding 5 years from the date of acquisition.

Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of any intangible asset is assessed and
written down to its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value
less cost to sell and its value in use, Fair value less cost to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of
an asset less the costs of disposal.

3.6 Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies during the period have been translated at the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies have
been translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. Exchange gains or losses
arising on the settlement and translation of foreign currency items have been included in the special
purpose consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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NOTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.7 Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to detenmine the extent of the
impairment loss. Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated
to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified. Recoverable
amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease,

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit)
1s increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, as long as so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognized for the asset (cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognized immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increasc.

3.8 Provisions, contingent assets and liabilities

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present legal constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate of the amount can be made.

Where the effect of the time value of money is material, the amount of the provision shall be the present
value of the expenditures expected to be required to seitle the obligation. The discount rate reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The discount
rate shall be a pre-tax rate and shall not reflect risks for which future cash flow estimates have been
adjusted.

A possible obligation or asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control
of the Group have not been recognized in the special purpose consolidated financial statements and
treated as contingent liabilities and assets.

3.9 Financial assets

Financial assets include short-term liquid assets with original maturities of more than 3 months and
restricted bank deposits,
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NOTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.10 Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Group’s statement of financial position
when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and
financial liabilities are inmtially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial labilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or tinancial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis.

The Group classifies its financial assets as (a) Business model used for managing financial assets, (b)
financial assets subsequently measured at amortised cost, at fair value through other comprehensive
income or at fair value through profit or loss based on the characteristics of contractual cash flows. The
Group reclassifies all financial assets eftected from the change in the business model it uses for the
management of financial assets. The reclassification of financial assets is applied prospectively from the
reclassification date. In such cases, no adjustment is made to gains, losses (including any gains or losses
of impairment) or interest previously recognized in the financial statements.

Classification of financial assets

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are measured subsequently at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows; and
. the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are

solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are measured subsequently at fair value through
other comprehensive income (FYTOCI):

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets; and
* the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are

solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

By defaunlt, all other financial assets are measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL).
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NOTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification of financial assets (Continued)

Despite the foregoing, the Group may make the following irrevocable election/designation at initial
recognition of a financial asset; the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair
value of an equity investment in other comprehensive income if certain criteria are met.

n Amortised cost and effective interest method

Interest income on financial assets carried at amortized cost is calculated using the effective interest
method. The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. This income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset:

(a) Credit-impaired financial assets when purchased or generated. For such financial assets, the Group
applies the effective interest rate on the amortized cost of a financial asset based on the loan from the
date of the recognition in the financial statements.

(b) Nen-financial assets that are impaired at the time of acquisition or generation but subsequently
become a financial asset that has been impaired. For such financial assets, the Group applies the effective
interest rate to the ameortized cost of the asset in the subsequent reporting periods.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for debt instruments measured
subsequently at amortised cost and at FVTOCL

(ii) Debt instruments classified as at FVTOCI

The corporate bonds held by the Group are classified as at FVTOCI. The corporate bonds are initially
measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, changes in the carrying amount of these
corporate bonds as a result of foreign exchange gains and losses (see below), impairment gains or losses
(see below), and interest income calculated using the effective interest method (see (i) above),are
recognised in profit or loss. The amounts that are recognised in profit or loss are the same as the amounts
that would have been recognised in profit or loss if these corporate bonds had been measured at
amortised cost. All other changes in the carrying amount of these corporate bonds are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of investments revaluation reserve.
When these corporate bonds are derecognised, the cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

(iii) Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

On initial recognition, the Group may make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument
basis) to designate investments in equity instruments as at FVTOCL

26

DELOITTE TURKEY

STAMFED FOR IDENTIFICATION

PURPOSES ONLY



KARPOWER INTERNATIONAL B.V.

NOTES TO THE SPECIAL PURPOSE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

{Amounts expressed in US Dollars (“USD") unless otherwise indicated.)

NOTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.10 Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification of financial assets (Continued)

(ii1) Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI (Continued)

A financial asset is held for trading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or

. on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

. it is a derivative (except for a derivative that is a financial guarantee contract or a designated

and effective hedging instrument).

Investments in equity instruments at FVTQCI are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs.
Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve. The
cumulative gain or loss is not to be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the equity investments,
instead, it is transferred to retained eamings.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss in accordance with
IFRS 9, unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.

Foreign exchange gains and losses

The carrying amount of financial assets that are denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that
foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting peniod. Specifically,

. for financial assets measured at amortised cost that are not part of a designated hedging
relationship, exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss;
. for debt instruments measured at FVTOCI that are not part of a designated hedging relationship,

exchange differences on the amortised cost of the debt instrument are recognised in profit or loss;. Other
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income;

. for financial assets measured at FVTPL that are not part of a designated hedging relationship,
exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss; and
. for equity instruments measured at FVTOCI, exchange differences are recognised in other

comprehensive income.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on investments in debt instruments
that are measured at amortised cost or at FVTOQCI, lease receivables, trade receivables and contract
assets, as well as financial guarantee contracts. No impairment loss is recognised for investments in
equity instruments. The amount of expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the respective financial instrument.
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NOTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.10 Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The Group utilizes a simplified approach for trade receivables, contract assets and lease receivables that
does not have significant financing component and calculates the allowance for impairment against the
lifetime ECL of the related financial assets.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises lifetime ECL when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. However, if on the other hand, the credit risk on the
financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures the
loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Measurement and recognition of expected credit losses

The measurement of expected credit losses is a tunction of the probability of default, loss given default
(i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of defauit and loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information as described above. As for the exposure at default, for financial assets, this is represented
by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date.

For financial assets, the expected credit loss is estimated as the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.
In addition, on derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument classified as at FYTQCI, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to
protit or loss. In contrast, on derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the Group has
elected on initial recognition to measure at FVTOCT, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated
in the investments revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to retained
earnings.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL on initial recognition. On initial recognition of liabilities
other than those that are recognised at FVTPL, transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
or issuance thereof are also recognised in the fair value.
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NOTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)
A financial liability is subsequently classified at amortized cost except:

(a) Financial liabilities at FVTPL: These liabilities including derivative instruments are subsequently
measured at fair value.

(b) Financial liabilities arising if the transfer of the financial asset does not meet the conditions of
derecognition from the financial statements or if the ongoing relationship approach is applied: When the
Group continues to present an asset based on the ongoing relationship approach, a liability in relation to
this is also recognised in the financial statements. The transferred asset and the related liability are
measured to reflect the rights and liabilities that the Group continues to hold. The transferred liability is
measured in the same manner as the net book value of the transferred asset.

(c) A contingent consideration recognized in the financial statements by the entity acquired in a business
combination where IFRS 3 is applied: After initial recognition, the related contingent consideration is
measured as at FVTPL.

The Group does not reclassify any financial liability.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable, including any non-cash assets transferred
or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.

3.11 Taxation on income

Taxation on income included in the special purpose consolidated statement of profit or loss comprises
current tax and the change in the deferred income taxes. Current taxes on income comprise tax payable
calculated on the basis of expected taxable income for the period using the tax rates enacted at the
balance sheet date and any adjustment in taxes payable for prior years.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on all temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying values in the financial statements. The
tax base of an asset and liability is the amount that will affect the taxable income of such asset and
liabilities in subsequent periods, in accordance with the tax legislation. Deferred income tax assets and
liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the balance sheet date,

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized reflecting the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects at the balance sheet date to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. While the deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for
all temporary differences; deferred income tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized. The Group
reduces the carrying amount of a deferred income tax asset to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow the benefit of part or all that deferred income tax asset
to be utilized.
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NOTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.11 Taxation on income {Continued)

When the deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority and there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities, deferred income tax assets and deferred income fax liabilities are offset
accordingly (Note 21).

3.12 Share capital and dividends

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Dividends on ordinary shares are recognized in equity in the
period in which they are declared. Dividend payables are reflected to special purpose consolidated
financial statements as a liability once the dividend distribution is approved by the Group’s shareholders
(Note 15),

3.13 Provision for employment termination benefits

Employment termination benefits represent the present value of the estimated total reserve of the future
probable obligation, that arise on retirement of the employees, employees who achieves the retirement
age and for employees whose employment is terminated without due cause, are called up for military
service or dies, calculated in accordance with the recased legislation of each Group entity. Accordingly
only the entities operating in Turkey is obliged by provision for employee termination benefits, as
required by the Turkish Commercial Law.

The defined retirement benefit obligation is calculated based on actuarial forecasts using the projected
unit credit method when considering present value. All actuarial gains and losses are accounted for under
other comprehensive income.

3.14 Events after the reporting period

Subsequent events consist of all events between balance sheet date and date of authorization for validity,
even if they have been ceased to exist after any information related to profit or other financial
information is publicly announced.

The Group adjusts amounts in financial statements accordingly, when an adjusting event occurs after
the balance sheet date. If non-adjusting events after balance sheet date have material effects on the
economic decisions of the users of the financial statements, they are disclosed in the notes to the special
purpose consolidated financial statements (Note 24).

3.15 Borrowings and borrowing costs

Borrowings are recognized initially at the proceeds received, net of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowings are subsequently presented at amortized cost using the effective yield method; any
difference between proceeds, net of transaction costs, and the redemption value is recognized in the
special purpose consolidated statement of profit or loss over the period of the borrowings.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognized as transaction costs of the loan to the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is
deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or
all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalized as a pre-payment for liquidity services and
amortized over the period of the facility to which it relates.
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NOTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.15 Borrowings and borrowing costs (Continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset in the period in which the asset is prepared
for its intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are charged to the special purpose consolidated
statement of profit or loss when they are incurred.

Foreign exchange differences and the effective portion of the fair value differences relating to
borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs are also capitalized.
The gains and losses that are an adjustment to interest costs include the interest rate differential between
borrowing costs that would be incurred if the entity borrowed funds in its functional currency, and
borrowing costs actually incurred on foreign currency borrowings.

3.16 Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Inventories comprise spare parts, fuel
oil and lube oil. The cost of inventories is determined on a weighted average basis. The net realizable value
is the estimate of the selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the costs of completion and
selling expenses (Note 8).

3.17 Spare parts

Spare parts and maintenance equipment are generally accounted in inventories and are reflected to the
statement of profit or loss as used; however, spare parts and maintenance equipment that are expected
to be used more than one period by the Group are accounted as property, plant and equipment. Moreover,
if spare sparts or maintenance equipment is only associated with one property, plant and equipment then
they are accounted under floating powerplant for as property, plant and equipment (Note 11).

3.18 Statement of cash flows

Cash flows during the period are classified and reported by operating, investing and financing activities in
the cash flow statements. Cash flows from operating activities represent the cash flows of the Group
generated from the ordinary course of business. Cash flows related to investing activities represent the
cash flows that are used in or provided from the investing activities of the Group (fixed asset investments
and financial investments). Cash flows arising from financing activities represent the cash proceeds from
the financing activities of the Group and the repayments of these funds. Cash and cash equivalents
comprise cash on hand and bank deposits and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash with maturities equal or less than one months.

3.19 Offsetting

Each material class of sirmilar items according to their nature or function is presented separately in the
financial statements. If a line item is not individually material, it is aggregated with other similar items
according to their nature or function. If the essence of the transaction and events requires offsetting,
presentation of these transactions and events at their net values or following up of the assets at their
amounts after the deduction of impairment, is not evaluated as a breach of the non-deductibility rule.

31

DELOITTE TURKEY
STAMPED FOR IDENTIFICATION
PURPOSES ONLY



KARPOWER INTERNATIONAL B.V.

NOTES TO THE SPECIAL PURPOSE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

(Amounts expressed in US Dollars {“USD™} unless otherwise indicated. }

NOTE 4 - FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks. These risks are; liquidity risk, market risk
(including currency risk, interest rate risk)}, credit risk and funding risk.

The Group’s overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

Financial risk management is carried out by Finance Department of Karadeniz Holding under the
policies approved by the Board of Directors. Finance Department is in cooperation with the other units
of the Group and assures the detection and evaluation of financial risks and related prevention from the
risks.

a) Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors, which has built
an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Group’s short, medium
and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk by
maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities by continuously
monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and
liabilities.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. The table includes both interest
and principal cash flows.

Non derivative financial liabilities:

Total

Carrying contractuat Less than 3-12 1-5
2015 value cash outflow 3 months months years
Bank bommowings 1.548,105313 1,766,274 563 145,566,702 659,886,708 960,821,153
Trade payables 149,688 838 149 688 838 149 688 838 - -
Due to related parties 16,434,706 16,434,706 16,434,706 - -
Other liabilities 32,858,579 32 858,579 31858579 - -
1,747 087,436 1,965,256,686 344,548,828 659,886,708 960.821,153
Total

Carrying contractnal Less than 3-12 1-5
2018 value cash outflow 3 months months years
Bank barrow:ings 1347240922 1619280913 123131312 367,207,002 1128942 599
Trade payahles 413,071,897 413,071 897 413,071,897 - -
Due to related partizs 20,598,273 20598273 20,598,273 - -

Other liabitities 31,334 668 31334668 31,334,668 -
1,812,245,760 2,084,285,751 588,136,150 367,207,002 1,128,942,599
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NOTE 4 - FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

b)  Market risk

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk through the impact of rate changes on interest bearing liabilities
and assets. These exposures are managed using natural hedges that arise from offsetting interest rate
sensitive assets and liabilities. The Group utilizes its cash assets it holds in the form of financial
instruments as time deposits. In order to minimize the interest rate risk, the Group seeks for the most
convenient possible rates for lending.

Interest rate position of the Group as of 31 December 2019 and 2018 is as follows:

Fixed rate financial instruments

Financial assefs 2019 2018
Cash and cash equivalents 9,016,656 134,340,871
Govemment bonds 33,304,543 -
Financial liabhilities 2019 2018
Bank borrowings 817,944 944 205,749,286
Floating rate financial ins truments 2019 2018
Financial liabilities

Bank borrowings 730,160,369 1,141,491,636

The weighted average effective annual interest rates (%) for the interest bearing financial assets and
liabilities of the Group are as follows:

2019 2018
Fixed rates UsD EUR Other USD EUR  Other
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 0.70% 0.50% - 0.81% - 010%
Financial liabilities
Bank borrowings 6.45% - - 7.67% 5.13% -
2019 2018
Floating rates UsSD EUR QOther USD EUR Other
Financial liabilities
Bank borrowings 6.01% 6.14 - 8.76% - -
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NOTE 4 - FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
b) Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2019, if interest rates on financial liabilities in USD and EUR had been 100 basis points
higher/lower, with all other variables held constant, interest expense would have been USD 7,301,604
(2018 USD 11,414,916) higher/lower.

c) Currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk through the impact of rate changes in the translation of
foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities to USD. These risks are monitored and limited by
the analysis of the foreign currency position.

The Group’s foreign currency risk (exposure) is monitored by the management on a weekly and where
necessary on a daily basis. The objective of the management is to limit the open exposure under levels
determined by the Board of Directors.

Foreign Currency Position

The Group’s assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies as of 31 December 2019 and 2018
are as follows:

2019 2018
Assets 49,818,809 23,985,865
Liabilities (435,102,904} (427,305,796)
Net foreign currency position (385,284,095) (403,319,931)
2019
Total foreign
TL EUR LBP Other currency
Assets:
Cash and cash
equivalents 163,723 6,048,938 32,155,690 8,749,756 47,118,107
Tradc recetvables - - - 5,177 5,177
Due fromrclated parties 19 } ) 185,887 185,006
Prepaid expenses 604,712 1,602,914 - 301,993 2,509,619
Total assets 768,454 7,651,852 32,155,690 9,242 813 49,818,809
Liabilities:
Bauk borrowings - (373,973,743) - - (373,973,743)
Trade payables (1,942,203) (58,742,710) - (219,369) (60,904,282)
Due to related parties (8,975) - - (215,904) (224,879)
Total liabilities (1,951,178) (432,716,453) - (435,273) (435,102,904)
Net foreign currency
__position (1,182,724) (425,064,601) 32,155,690 8,807,540 (385,284,095)
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NOTE 4 - FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

c) Currency risk (Continued)
2018
Tolal foreign
TL FUR LBP Other currency
Assels:
Cash and cash
equivalents 174,058 1,025,057 3,488 26,013,997 27,216,600
Trade receivables 2,837,970 3,237,255 - 48,859 6,124,084
Due fro i
ue from related parties 9,310 2,548,341 - 77,258 2,634,909
Prepaid cxpenses 647,268 11,453,005 - 583,471 12,683,744
Total assets 3,668,606 18,263,658 3,488 26,723,585 48,659,337
Liabilities:
Bank bommowings - (137,055,670) - - {137,055,670)
Trade payables (12,293,431) (196,586,297} - (2,153,567 {211,033,295)
Due to related partics (8,524,006) (70,524,675) - (168,150) (79,216,831)
Total liabilities (20,817,437) (404,166,642) - (2,321,717)  (427,305,796)
Net foreign currency
position (17,148,831) (385,902,984) 3,488 24,401,868  (378,646,459)

The foreign currency rates used in the translation of foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities
into USD as ot 31 December 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

2019 2018
EUR 1.1196 1.2646
L 0.1683 0.1901
LBP 0.0007 0.0016

The Group is mainly exposed to foreign exchange risks in terms of TL, EUR and LBP.

As of 31 December 2019, all other variables held constant, if the TL had been appreciated/depreciated
by 10% against the USD, foreign exchange losses/gains resulting from foreign currency denominated
assets and liabilities would decrease/increase profit betore tax by USD 118,272 (2018: USD 1,714,883}

As of 31 December 2019, all other variables held constant, if the EUR had been appreciated/depreciated
by 10% against the USD, foreign exchange losses/gains resulting from foreign currency denominated
assets and Habilities would decrease/increase profit before tax by USD 42,506,460 (2018: USD
38,590,298).

As of 31 December 2019, all other variables held constant, if the LBP had been appreciated/depreciated
by 10% against the USD, foreign exchange losses/gains resulting from foreign currency denominated
assets and liabilities would decrease/increase profit before tax by USD 3,215,569 (2018: USD 349).
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NOTE 4 - FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
d) Funding risk

Funding risk attributable to the current and future potential liabilities is managed by providing
continuous access to adequate number of creditors with high quality. The Group’s borrowings are
obtained from various financially strong financial institutions.

e) Credit risk

Credit risk consists of cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits and receivables from customers exposed
to credit risk.

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty cannot fulfil its obligations in the agreements that the Group is
party to. The Group management monitors the credit nisk by credit ratings and limitations to the total
risk of a single counterparty.

The Group management assesses the credit quality of its customers, taking into account financial
position, past experience and other factors. The Group monitors the performance of these financial assets
on a regular basis to identify incurred collection losses.

The Group does not consider its related party receivables (including aged receivables) as risky in terms
of collection based on the tfact that the receivables are due from Karadeniz Group entities and the total

receivables are collected in previous years.

The maximum exposure of the Group’s financial assets to credit risk is as follows;

Due from
Trade related Cash Financial
2019 receivables parties at banks assets
Maximum exposure to credit risk
(A+B+C+D+E) 445,566,872 65,492,074 172,149.317 87,554,543
- Credit visk covered by guarantees 168,551,567 - - -
A Neither past due nor impaired financial
asscts 105,050,590 65,402 074 172,149,317 87,554,543

- Secured with guarantees 32,439,764

B. Restructured financial assets

C. Past due but not impaired financial assets 340.516.282 ) ) )

- Secured with guarantees 136,552,203 - - -
D. Impaired assets - - - -
- (ross amotnt 80,760,678 - - -
- Impairment (80,760,678) - - -

- Secured with guarantees - - - -
E. Collective provision for inpairment (-) - - - -
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NOTE 4 - FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

e Credit risk (Continued)

Due from
Trade related Cash Financial
2018 receivables parties at banks assets
Maximum exposure to credit risk
(A+B+C+D+E) 497,372,079 18,038,868 219,193,514 2,530,975
- Credit nisk covered by guarantees 228,097,624 - - -
A. Neither past due nor impaired financial
asscts 236,732,900 18,038,868 219,193,514 2.530.975

- Secured with guarantees 24,498,962
B. Restructured financial assets - - - -

C. Past due but not impaired financial assets 257,639,179 ) R B

- Secured with guarantees 203,598,662 - - -
D. Impaired assets - - - -
- Gross amount 32.455.031 - - -
- Impatrment (32,455,031) - - -

- Secured with guarantees - - - -
E. Collective provisien for impairment (-) - - - -

In order to minimise credit risk, the Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy
counterparties and obtaining sufficient collateral, where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk
of financial loss from defaults. The Group monitors the credibility of the parties with whom they perform
transactions and also takes into account the credit rating of the related instruments when making the
investment preference. The credit rating information is supplied by independent rating agencies where
available and, if not available, the Group uses other publicly available financial information and its own
trading records to rate its major customers. The Group's exposure and the credit ratings of its
counterparties are continuously monitored and the aggregate value of transactions concluded is spread
amongst approved counterparties. Before accepting any new customer, credit limits by customer are
determined and defined after the assessment of the potential customer’s credit quality.

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in
financial loss to the Group. In order to minimize the credit risk, the Group has performed credit ratings
considering the default risks of the counterparties and categorized the related parties.

The Group recognize %100 provision expense for its 180 days and more overdue receivables.

The Group's current credit risk rating methodology includes the following categories:
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KARPOWER INTERNATIONAL B.V.

NOTES TO THE SPECIAL PURPOSE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

(Amounts expressed in US Dollars (*USD™) unless otherwise indicated.)

NOTE 4 - FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

e) Credit risk (Continued)

Basis for recognizing
expected credit losses
Consist of secured receivables Not generating credit losses
The counterparty has a lowrisk  Not generating credit losses
Recoverable receivables of default and secured
Doubtful or past due receivables Amount is >180 days past duc or %5100 allowance for
there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial

Category Description
Secured receivables

unsecurcd receivables

recognition

Write-ofl There is evidence indicating Amount is written off
the assest is credit-impaired

P Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benetits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Debt (trade payable and related party included)

Less: Cash and cash equivalents

Net debt
Total equity

Total net debt and total equity
Net debt/Total equity ratio

38

31 December 31 December

2019 2018
1,714,228,857 1,780,91 1,092
(172,197,903) (219,315,058)
1,542,030,954 1,561,596,034
2,275,405,854 1,851,640,330

3,817,436,808
40%

3,413,236,364
46%

DELOITTE TURKEY
STAMPED FOR IDENTIFICATION
PURPOSES ONLY



KARPOWER INTERNATIONAL B.V.

NOTES TO THE SPECIAL PURPOSE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

{Amounts expressed in US Dollars (“LSD”) unless otherwise indicated.)

NOTE 4 - FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the amount at which a financial instrument can be exchanged in a current transaction between
available parties, other than in a forced sale or liquidation, and is best determined by a quoted market price,
if existing.

For financial instruments that are measured in the balance sheet at fair value; this requires disclosure of
fair value measurements by level of the following fair value measurement hierarchy:

. Quoted prices (un adjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1).

. Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (Level 2).

. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, not observable

inputs) (Level 3).

The estimated fair values of financial instruments have been detenmined by the Group, using available
market information and appropriate valuation methodologies. However, judgement is necessarily required
to interpret market data to estimate the fair value. Accordingly, the estimates presented herein are not
necessarily indicative of the amounts the Group could realise in a current market exchange.

The following methods and assumptions are used to estimate the fair value of the financial instruments:
Financial assets

The carrying values of significant portion of cash and cash equivalents are assumed to approximate to
their fair value due to their short-term nature.

The carrying values of trade receivables are assumed to approximate to their amortized cost.

For the estimated fair value of advances given to customers, it is assumed that the carrying value
approximates to the amortized cost.

Financial liabilities

The fair values of short-term borrowings and trade payables are assumed to approximate to their carrying
values due 1o their short-term nature.

The estimated fair values of long-term borrowings are calculated based on the effective market interest
rates and the cash flow calculations are discounted accordingly.

For the estimated fair value of advances received from customers, it is assumed that the carrying value
approximates to the fair value.

The fair value of the Group’s financial liabilities approximates their carrying amount.
NOTE 5 - CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Preparation of special purpose consolidated financial statements necessitates the usage of estimations
and assumptions that can affect amounts of reported assets and liabilities as of balance sheet date, the
explanation for the contingent assets and liabilities and income and expenses reported during the
accounting period. Although these estimations and assumptions are based on the best judgment of the
Group management related with the current conditions and transactions, actual results may differ from
these estimations. Estimations are revised on a regular basis; necessary adjustments and corrections are
made; and they are included in the income statement when they accrue. Estimations and assumptions
subject to the risk of leading to corrections in the registered value of the assets and liabilities in the next
financial period are given below:
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(Amounts expressed in US Dollars (“USD”) unless otherwise indicated.)

NOTE 5 - CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Emplovee benefits

Termination and retirement benefits

The Group has operated in different countries and the local regulations and practices of the countries in
question are applied in determination of defined benefit plan.

The retirement benefit liability recognised in the balance sheet represents the present value of the defined
benefit obligation.

Current tax

Provisions for taxes, as reflected in the accompanying consolidated special purpose financial statements,
have been calculated on a separate-entity basis.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the period. Taxable profit differs from profit as
reported in the income statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes iterns that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting date,

Determination of fair values of Floating Power plants

Property. plant and equipment, other than floating powerplants are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment, if any. Floating power plants are carried at fair value less
accumulated depreciation using the revaluation method. The fair values of floating power plants are
determined from market-based evidence by appraisal that is normally undertaken by professionally
qualified valuers. The Group used the “cost approach” method for the floating power plants.

Calculation of loss allowance

When measuring ECL the Group uses reasonable and supportable forward looking information, which
is based on assumptions for the future movement of different economic drivers and how these drivers
will affect each other. The Group has recognised a loss allowance of 100% against all receivables over
180 days past due because historical experience has indicated that these receivables are generally not
recoverable. Loss given default is an estimate of the loss arising on default. It is based on the difference
between the contractual cash flows due and those that the tender would expect to receive, taking into
account cash flows from collateral and integral credit enhancements. Probability of default constitutes
a key input in measuring ECL. Probability of default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a
given time horizon, the calculation of which includes historical data, assumptions and expectations of
future conditions. Details of the key assumptions and inputs used are disclosed below;

31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Loss given default rate 45% 45%
Probability of default rate 0.68% - 27.27% 0.70% - 1.93%
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(Amounts expressed in US Dollars (“USD™) unless otherwise indicated.)

NOTE 5 - CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Calculation of depreciation of Power Plant

Preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimations and assumptions which
may affect the reported amounnts of assets and liabilities as of the statement of financial position date,
the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities and the reported amounts of income and expenses
during the financial period. The accounting assessments, estimates and assumptions are reviewed
considering past experiences, other factors and reasonable expectations about future events under
current conditions. Although the estimations and assumptions are based on the best estimates of the
management’s existing incidents and operations, they may differ from the actual results.

In the current period, the management has decided to change the depreciation methodology tor
machineries and started to depreciate engines by using units of production method. This method is based
on the actual working hours of related asset rather than depreciate them within a fixed timetframe. This
methodology change has been applied prospectively starting from 1 January 2019 in the accompanying
financial statements and comparatively depreciation expense has been decreased in 2019. If the Group
continued to depreciate engines according to their usefull lifes, the Group would have recognized %33
higher than amortization expense in its special purpose consolidated profit and loss statement.

Impairment in financial assets

The loss allowances for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss
rates. The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the Group’s past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking
estimates at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of Floating Power Plant

Management reviews the carrying amount of its floating power plant to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment in accordance with IAS 36 Impairment of Assets. Management has determined
that no indication of impairment exists as at reporting date. The recoverable amount (net realizable
value) of floating power plant is the greater of net selling price and value in use.

The Group reviews the carrying values of its floating power plant for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. If any such indication
exists and where the camrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the assets or
cashgenerating units are written down to their recoverable amount. The recoverable amounts of floting
power plants have been determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations require the
use of estimates.

As of 31 December 2019, impairment test for the floating power plants are generated by comparing its
carrying amount with the recoverable amount. The recoverable amount i1s determined taking the value
in use calculation as basis. During these 13 and 25 years period calculations, estimated free cash flow
were approved by board of directors. Estimated free cash flows are discounted to expected present value
for future cash flows. Key assumptions are such as country specific fee rates, and target list. Beside that
the cash flow model does not contain growth rate assumption. For impairment testing, assets that cannot
be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets, cash generating units (Note
11). For the impairment test, 8.63% Weighted Average Cost of Capital (“WACC”) were used for the
year-end 31 December 2019. The cash flow projections are not WACC sensitive (Note 11).
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{Amounts expressed in US Dollars (“USD”’) unless otherwise indicated.)

NOTE 6 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND FINANCIAL ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 2019 2018

Cash 48,586 121,544
Cash at banks

- USD denominated demand deposits 116,021,761 78,626,914

- Foretgn currency denominated demand deposits 47,110,900 6,225,729

-USD denominated time deposits 9,009,449 113,350,000

- Foreign currency denominated time deposits 7,207 20,990,871

172,197,903 219,315,058

Time deposits have less than one month maturity and annual effective interest rate for IRR denominated
deposits is 0.5% (2018: USD 0.71%).

Foreign currency denominated

cash and cash equivalents 2019 2018
1BP 32,155,690 3,488
EUR 6,048,938 1,025,057
Other 8013470 26,188,055

47,118,107 27,216,600

NOTE 7 - TRADE RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

Trade receivables 2019 2018
Trade recetvables 526,205,605 529,827,110
Less: Provision for doubtful receivables (80,638,733) (32,455,031)

445,566,872 497,372,079

The average maturity of trade receivables as of 31 December 2019 is 150 (31 December 2018: 150 days)

USD 105,050,590 of the Group’s trade receivables is neither due nor impaired as of 31 December 2019
(2018: USD 239,732,900).

The aging analysis of overdue but not impaired receivables as of 31 December 2019 and 2018 is as
follows:

2019 2018

Up to 3 months 42,629,681 132,924,709
3 - 12 months 215,291,268 40,176,104
More than one year 82,595,333 84,538,366
340,516,282 257,639,179
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NOTE 7 - TRADE RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES (Continued)

The Group allocated a provision for its all doubtful trade receivables and movements of provision for

doubtful trade receivables are as follows:

2019 2018
1 January (32,455,031) (21,935,356)
Charge for the period (Notel9) (48,183,702) (10,803,957)
Provision released - 284,282
31 December {80,638,733) (32,455,031)

The Group always measures the loss allowance for trade receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECL.
The expected credit losses on trade receivables are estimated using a provision matrix by reference to
past default experience of the debtor and an analysis of the debtor’s current financial position, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions of the industry in which the
debtors operate and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at
the reporting date. The Group has recognised a loss allowance of 100% against all receivables over 180
days past due because historical experience has indicated that these receivables are generally not
recoverable. The allocation and release of provision for doubtful receivables have been included in other
operating income and expenses in the special purpose consolidated statement of profit or loss.

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions made during the

current reporting period.

Trade payables

Short term trade payables 2019 2018
Payables to suppliers 147,966,808 410,853,300
Notes payable 1,722,030 2,218,591

149,688,838 413,071,897

Short term trade payables as of 31 December 2019 and 2018 have an average maturity of six months.

Nature and level of risks arising from trade receivables and payables are disclosed under Note 4.

NOTE 8 - INVENTORIES

2019 2018

Fuel oil and Lube oil 32,328,138 23,509,511
Spare parts and consumables 8,508,816 5,753,861
Goods in transit (1) 1,284,566 -
42,121,520 29,263,372

(1}  Goods in transit are spare parts acquired for powership constructions.
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NOTE 9 - PREPAID EXPFENSE AND DEFERRED INCOME

Current prepaid expenses 2019 2018
Advances given "’ 27,080,927 28,513,487
Prepaid expenses 5,507,707 10,559,181
Contractual aquisition cost 3,247,149 4,187,666
Insurance expenses 3,211,006 8,609,417
39,046,789 51,869,751
Non - current prepaid expenses 2019 2018
Contractual aquisition cost 13,281,275 16,911,275
Prepaid expenscs = 3,163,282 1,876,777
Advances given th - 1,048,098
16,444,557 19,836,150
(h Advances given comprise payments made for purchases of property, plant and equipment and inventories.
) Prepayments to supplier balances is mainly related with consulting services received or to be received in relation to
sale of energy conversion works in Lebanon.
Shori-term deferred income 2019 2018
Advances received from customers (1) 16,851,433 14,320,648
16,851,433 14,320,648
Long-term deferred income 2019 2018
Advances received fromcustomers (1) 13,220,269 27,513,861
13,220,269 27,513,861
(1) The Group signed agreements with Republic of Lebanon Ministry of Energy and Water for electricity sales

through operating floating power plants. The major part of advance received balance amounting to USD 25,013,961 (2G18:

USD 39,307,653) belongs to advances received regarding these agreements.
NOTE 10 - OTHER ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Other current assets 2019 2018
VAT receivables 90,379,764 82,484,628
Prepaid taxes 3,426,153 16,375,112
Income accrual 17,599,650 10,095,852
Other 346,281 786,841
111,951,848 109,742,433

Other non-current assets 2019 2018
VAT receivables 3,030,555 -
3,030,555 -

Other current liabilities 2019 2018
Fxpense accruals E 24,082,967 19,381,760
Taxes and funds payable 6,518,145 9,480,274
Payables to personnel 2,017,098 2,116,468
Other 240,369 356,166
32 858,579 31,334,668

N Expense accruals comprise the services provided to the powerships in Lebanon, Ghana and Indonesia such as technical
services, consultancy, food and bevarage, security and other supplies whose invoices are not received.
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KARPOWER INTERNATIONAL B.V.

NOTES TO THE SPECIAL PURPOSE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

(Amounts expressed in US Dollars (“USD™) unless otherwise indicated.)

NOTE 11 - PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, NET (Continued)

The Group’s power plants are stated at their revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date of
revaluation, less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses. The fair value measurements of the Group’s power plants as at 31 December 2019 and 31 December
2018 were performed by independent valuers not related to the Group. Valuation company have
appropriate qualifications and recent experience in the fair value measurement of power plants in the
relevant locations.

The fair value of the power plants was determined based on the cost approach that reflects the cost to a
market participant to construct assets of comparable utility and age, adjusted for obsolescence/other
methods. The revaluation surplus was credited to other comprehensive income and is shown in 'revaluation
reserve’ in shareholders’ equity.

There has been no change to the valuation technique during the year.

Fair value as at 31 December 2019

31 December Levell Level 2 Level 3
2019 USD UsD USD
Floating power plants 2,537,116,561 - - 2,537,116,561
Fair value as at 31 December 2018
31 December Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
2018 USD USD USD
Floating power plants 2,250,539,995 - - 2,250,539,995

NOTE 12 - BANK BORROWINGS

2019 2018

Annual Annual

effective effective

interest inlerest rate
rate (%) uUsD (%) UsD
USD denominated bank borrowings 4.25% 12,517,028 7.15% 5,006,951
EUR denominated bank borrowmgs 6.90% 16,346,041 - -
USD denominated letter of credit 18,464,701 6,453,581
EUR denominated letter of credit 171,100,607 39,678,515
Short term bank borrowings 218,428,377 51,139,047
USD denominated bank borrowings 6.12% 413,291,994 8.18% 274,391,318
EUR denominated bank borrowings 6.00% 75,642,691 5.08% 32,576,041

Short term portion of
long term borrowings 488,934,685 306,967,359
Total short term bank borrowings 707,363,062 358,106,406
USD denominated bank bormowings 6.53% 729,857,847 8.94% 924,333,402
EUR denominated bank borrowings 6.06% 110,884,404 5.15% 64,801,114
Long term bank borrowings 840,742,251 989,134,516
Total bank borrowings 1,548,105,313 1,347,240,922
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KARPOWER INTERNATIONAL B.V.

NOTES TO THE SPECIAL PURPOSE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

(Amounts expressed in US Dollars (“USD™} unless otherwise indicated.)

NOTE 12 - BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

The borrowings are repayable as follows:

2019 2018
Up to 3 months 134,533,731 82,493,083
3 - 12 months 572,829,331 275,613,323
1 -5 years 840,742,251 989,134,516
1,548,105,313 1,347,240,922

The movement of borrowings as of 31 December 2019 and 2018 are as follows:
2019 2018
Opening 1,347,240,922 984,679,202
Addition 583,828,770 870,652,288
Payment (381,633,975) (510,599,688)
Foreign exchange gan (790,876) (6,500,780)
Change n intercst accrual (539,528) 9,009,900
1,548,105,313 1,347,240,022

NOTE 13 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Guarantees received 2019 2018
Advance payment guarantee 166,956,775 226,821,889
Guarantec cheques received 1,386,908 696,492
Guarantee notes reccived 304,220 495,708
Guarantee Ictters received 254,064 83,535

168,991,967 228,097,624

On 2 October 2019 and 29 August 2017 Karpowership Ghana has received guarantee letters amounting to
USD 76,000,000 and USD 79,000,000 respectively (2018: USD 219,000,000) from Electricity Company
of Ghana Limited. These guarantee letters expire on 29 September 2020, 31 July 2020 respectively.

Most of other advanced payment guarantees are received from main suppliers in return for the guarantees
given in the normal course of business.

Guarantees given 2019 2018
Mortgages on floating power plant 2,825,844.723 2,983,812,726
Guarantees given on behalf of the related parties 1,178,607,304 1,082,562,193

Guarantees given to govemment
due to peformance obligations 50,972,525 61,903,488
Guarantee given to third partics 26,205,102 41,689,935
Guarantee letters given 1,376,335 22,066,115
Bid bonds 11,000,000 367,517
4,094,005,989 4,192,401,974
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NOTE 14 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued)

Bank borrowings are secured by mortgages on Group’s property, plant and equipment and breakdown of
mortgages by degrees is as follows:

2019 2018

First degree 2,547,905,933 2,751,940,993
Second degree 277,938,790 231,871,733
2,825,844,723 2,983,812,726

Karpowership Lebanon has issued an irrevocable advance payment guarantee amounting to USD
26,205,102 (2018: USD 41,689,935 as of 31 December 2019) in favour of the Republic of Lebanon in
return for the advance payment received from Electricite du Liban under the electricity generation services
contract with the Republic of Lebanon. The advance payment guarantee expires on 30 March 2022.

Karpowership Lebanon has issued a performance bond amounting to USD 28,578,384 (2018: USD
42 ,881,076) as of 31 December 2019 in favour of Electricite du Liban represented by Ministry of Energy
and Water of the Government of the Republic of Lebanon under the electricity generation services contract
with the Republic of Lebanon dated 19 October 2018. The maturity date of the bond is 31 December 2021.

PT Indonesia has issued a2 performance bond amounting to IDR 170,105,184,000 (USD 12,252,124)
(2018: IDR 170,105,184,000 (USD 12,549,618)) as of 31 December 2019 in favour of PT PLN (Persero)
regarding the electricity generation services contract. The maturity dates of the bonds are between 9 March
2020 and 16 September 2020.

In accordance with the agreements related to operating leases of floating power plants, total “take or pay”
income on the basis of allocation of capacity for the contract periods is amounting to USD 3,837,363 ,497.
USD 837,482,531 of such income was to be recognised in 2020, and the remaining part of USD
2,999.8800,966 is to be recognised in the period between 2021 and 2030.

NOTE 15 - EQUITY
Share capital

The Group’s authorized and issued capital consists of 1,362,898 shares issued on bearer with a nominal
value of USD 624.84 cach (2018: 914,244) shares issued on bearer with a nominal value of USD
624.84). The Group does not have any preferred stock.

Shareholders has paid in cash and issued capital at amounting to USD 135,000,000, USD 9,837,000,
USD 16,000,000, USD 7,500,000, USD 17,000,000, USD 80,000,000 and USD 15,000,000 respectively
at 22 January 2019, 1 February 2019, 27 March 2019, 20 May 2019, 28 June 2019, 19 September 2019
and 30 December 2019.

The Group’s shareholders and their shareholding at 31 December 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

2019 2018
USD Share (%) Usb Share (%o )
Karkey Karadeniz Elektrik Urctim A .S.
("Karkey™) 851,685,010 100 571,348,010 100
Share capital 851,685,010 571,348,010
Total capital 851,685,010 571,348,010
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NOTE 15 - EQUITY (Continued)

Revaluation fund

The movements of revaluation funds of floating power plants are as follows:

2019 2018
1 January 639,029,368 426,480,702
Revaluation of floating power plants
(Note 11) 169,139,931 224,648,234
Trans fer of depreciation of
revalued powerships (14,242,894) (12,099,568)
31 December 793,926,405 639,029,368
The movements of non-controlling interests are as follows:
2019 2018
1 January 294,640 125,763
Share of profit for the year (209,150) 168,877
Changes in ownership rates 36,250,000 -
31 December 36,335,490 294 640
NOTE 16 - INVESTMENTS
Financial assefs measured at
amortised cost 2019 2018
Govemment bonds 33,304,543 -
Blocked deposits 54,250,000 2,530,975
Total inwes tments 87,554,543 2,530,975

The investments in listed corporate bond issued by Government of Ghana are paying a coupon rate of
17.60% and the bonds will mature on 22 January 2020. Nominal value of the bond approximates fair
value. The corporate bonds are held by the Group within a business model whose objective is both to
collect their contractual cash flows which are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding and to sell these financial assets.
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NOTE 17 - REVENUE AND COST OF SALES

2019 2018
Floating power plants rent income 726,634,171 695,711,949
Sales of fuel 331,075,255 528,064,670
Sales of trade goods and spare parts - 3,119,199
Other¢1) 6,440,299 1,873,169
1,064,149,725 1,228,768,987
(1) Other sales primarily comprise of service income to non-consolidated companies.
Cost of sales 2019 2018
Fuel, spare parts and consumables 349,521,421 523,452,760
Depreciation (Note 11) 102,460,203 131,822,291
Personnel expenses 49,794,605 48,087,708
Insurance expenscs 19,342,540 20,356,779
Consultancy expenses (1) 4,044,493 6,580,194
Transportation, shipment and travel expenses 8,203,002 5,989,107
Rent expenses 1,638,506 1,768,093
Repair maintanence expenses 517,044 1,135,983
Other (2) 30,619,754 20,881,741
566,141,568 760,074,656
(1) Consultancy expenses comprise of legal and tax advisory.
(2) Other cost of sales expenses comprise of powership operations, cmbarkments, shudge, sea store expenses etc
NOTE 18- GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
2619 2018
Consultancy expenses 48,781,989 27,890,792
Personnel expenses 8,929,578 10,423,164
Depreciation and amortisation (Note 11) 4,475,087 2,481,765
Travel and transportation cxpenscs 2,077,576 1,181,996
Other 7,839,113 6,610,878
72,103,343 48,588,595

(4] Other general administrative expenses comprise of utility expenses, rent expenses tax and duty, food and baverage

expenses, representation expenses etc.

The functional breakdown of depreciation and amortisation expenses is as follows:

Depreciation and amortisation expenses 2019 2018
Cost of sales 102,460,203 131,822,291
General administrative expenses 4,475,087 2,481,765
106,935,290 134,304,056

The functional breakdown of personnel expenses is as follows:
Personnel expenses 2019 2018
Cost of'sales 49,794,605 48,087,708
General administrative expenses 8,929,578 10,423,164
58,724,183 58,510,872
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NOTE 19 - OTHER OPERATING INCOME AND EXPENSES

Other operating income 2019 2018
Foreign exchange gains fromtrade payables and receivables 29,025,989 31,742,544
Gain on insurance claim 8,330,071 -
Interest income fromtrade receivables 7,268,641 10,091,677
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment 141,902 3,634,957
Other 11,939,662 6,500,060
56,706,265 51,969,238
Other operating expenses 2019 2018
Foreign exchange losses from trade payables and receivables 12,032,819 23,716,162
Fxpected credit loss (Note 7) 48,183,702 10,519,675
Contractual aquisition cxpenses 4,570,513 2,737,395
Other 7,619,949 9,188,575
72,406,983 46,161,807
NOTE 20 - FINANCIAL INCOME AND EXPENSES
Financial income 2019 2018
Foreign exchange gains 698,398 2,691,269
Interest income 1,778,567 1,677,843
2,476,965 4,369,112
Financial expenses 2019 2018
Interest expenses 126,075,581 100,062,934
Less: amounts inchuded in cost of qualifying asset (13,194,301) (28,513,487)
112,881,280 71,549,447
Comission expenses M 9,059,524 13,870,278
Forcign exchange losses 314917 825,231
122,255,721 86,244,956
(1) Commission expenses comprise of commiissions for guarantee letters and borrowings obtained.
NOTE 21 - TAXES ON INCOME
2019 2018
Current tax cxpenses (*) (27,781,463) (35,345, 160)
Deferred tax mcome / (expense) 84,934 (378,564)
(27,696,531) (35,723,724)

{*) Remaining prepaid taxes in the special purpose consolidated financial statements are classified under other current assets

(Note 10), stemming from different subsidiaries of the Group, operating in different taxation jurisdictions.
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NOTE 21 - TAXES ON INCOME (Continued)

The principal tax rates for each country are as follows:

Corporate tax rate (%)

Country 2019 2018
Mozambique 32.00 32.00
Sierra Leone 30.00 30.00
Gambia 27.00 27.00
Ghana 25.00 25.00
Indonesia 25.00 25.00
Turkey 22.00 22.00
The Netherlands 20.00 20.00
Singapore 17.00 17.00
Lebanon ¢ 17.00 17.00
Northem Cyprus 1.00 1.00
Malta 35.00 35.00
Senegal 30.00 30.00
Isle of Man - -

Marshall Islands - -
United Amb Emimtes - -

(1) Calculated over 1 7% of 15% of collection excluding VAT.

The reconciliation of tax expense disclosed in the special purpose consolidated statememt of
comprehensive income and tax expense calculated using enacted tax rate over income before tax for the
twelve-month periods ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 is as follows:

Deferred income tax

2019 2018

Profit before taxation on income 290,150,920 344,034,821

Expected tax charge at the applicable taxrate (20%) (58,030,184) (68,806,964)
Effect of tax excemtion, the rate differences

and other reconciling items 30,333,653 33,083,240

Current period tax expense (27,696,531) (35,723,724)

The Group recognizes deferred income tax assets and liabilities based upon the temporary differences
between its financial statements as reported in accordance with IFRS and its statutory tax financial
statements. For the calculation of deferred income tax asset and liabilities resuited from the temporary
differences, above mentioned tax rates are applied for each subsidiary.

The breakdown of cumulative temporary differences and the resulting deferred income tax assets/
(liabilities) provided at 31 December 2019 and 2018, using enacted tax rates at the balance sheet dates,
are as follows:
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NOTE 21 - TAXES ON INCOME (Continued)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Total Deferred
temporary differences tax assets/(liabilities)

2019 2018 2019 2018

Unused vacation 455,167 364,603 91,033 72,921

Trade receivables 46,450 46,450 9,290 9,290

Property, plant and equipment 889,847 129,745 163,022 25,949

Deferredincome tax assets 1,391,464 540,798 263,345 108,160
Provision for employment termination

benefits (249,649) (243.450) (149.930) (48.690)

Property, plant and equipment (485,327 (1,564,939) (97,065) (339,419)

Deferred income tax liabilities (734,976} (1,308,389) (146,995) (388,109)

Deferred income tax liabilities, net 656,488 (1,267,591) 116350 (279,949

The movements of deferred income taxes are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Since the
effective tax rate is zero for the most of the significant temporary differences, the group has recognized

lirmited amount of deferred tax asset or liability.

2019 2018
1 January (279,949) (527,418)
Charged to profit or loss 84,934 (378,564)
Credited to other comprchensive income (142,11 1) (10,472)
Curnrency translation differcnces 453,476 636,505
31 December 116,350 (279,949)
NOTE 22 - TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES
i) Balances with related parties:
Due from related parties 2019 2018
Kammol ENG Company Limited 30,894,188 11,410,000
Karen Dig Ticaretl ve Enerji A.S. 14,973,963 10,691
Karpowership (Cyprus) Company Limited 12,070,547 -
Karkey Karadeniz Elektrik Uretim Anonim Sirketi 2,654,314 426,846
Orhan Rema Karadeniz 227 6,007,177
Other 4,898,835 124,154
65,492,074 18,038,868

Due fromrelated party balances consist of USD 37,486,187 (2018: USD 17,605,719} receivables related

with financing activities.
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NOTE 22 - TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES (Continued)

i) Balances with related parties (Continued):

Due to related parties 2019 2018
Karadeniz Holding Anonim Sirketi 1,449 846 19,868,858
Karkey Karadeniz Elektrik Uretim Anonim Sirketi 13,724,115 299738
Other 1,260,745 429,677

16,434,706 20,598,273

Due to related party balances consist of USD 13,729,546 (2018: USD 19,735,113) payables related with
financing activities. Other payables doesn’t contain interest related to financing activities.

ii) Sales and purchases of goods/services:

The transactions with related parties for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

a) Sales to related parties: 2019 2018
Karen Dng Ticaret ve Encni A.S. 38,561,338 -
Karkey Karadeniz Elektnk Uretim Anonim Sirketi 3,717,481 2,223,291
Kammol LNG Company Limited 401,549 -
Other 63,092 59,130
42,743,460 2,282,421

b) Purchase of goods andservices from related parties: 2019 2018
Karadeniz Holding Anonim Sirketi 1,988,713 2,395,037
Karen Dig Ticaret ve Enerji A S. 1,323,834 -
Pamuk Gayrimenkul Yatinmlan A .S. 637,109 -
Karyek Karadeniz Elektrik Uretim A.S. 773,211 -
4,722,866 2,395,037

¢) Financial income from related parties: 2019 2018
Karmol ING Company Limited 583,488 -
Karkey Karadeniz Elektrik Uretim Anonim Sirketi 89,976 132,196
Karadeniz Holding A nonim Sirketi 15,536 -
689,000 132,196

d) Financial expenses to related parties: 2019 2018
Kamadeniz Holding Anonim Sirketi 1,329,258 5,914,909
Karkey Karadeniz Elcktrik Urctim Anonim Sirketi 819,805 854,966
2,149,063 6,769,875
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NOTE 22 - TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES (Continued)

iiif) Key management compensation

The Group classifies the member of board of directors, director, coordinator and general manager as key
management personnel. Total compensation provided to key management personnel by the Group for the
year amounts to USD 2,316,926 (2018: USD 1,673,362). The Group did not provide key management
with post-employment benefits, benefits due to outplacement, share-based payment and other long-term
benefits in the periods 1 January - 31 December 2019 and 2018.

NOTE 23 - INVESTMENTS ON A JOINT VENTURE
According to the agreement which has signed between Karpower International B.V. and Mitsui 0.8.K.

Lines Ltd. as at 13 November 2018, Karmol LNG Company Limited has been established, The parties
formed a partnership for business opportunities relating to LNG to Powership Project in Mozambique.

2019 2018

USD Share (% ) USD  Share (%)

Karmol LNG Company Limited 8,821,529 50.00 4,896,797 50.00
8,821,529 4,896,797

Relating to investment in associate, total assets and liabilities and profit/ (loss) for the period of as of 31
December 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

2019 2018
Current Asset 22,356,122 12,614,996
Non-Current Asset 64,723,644 20,017,171
Current Liabilities (13,845,233) (7.017,171)
Non-Current Liabilities (54,788,376) (15,820,000)
Net Assets 18,446,157 9,794,996
Proportion o f the Group’s ownership
interest in the joint venture 50% 50%
Other adjustments (*) (401,550) (701)
8,821,529 4,896,797

(*) The amount consist of the service provided by the Group (31 December 2018: the amount consist of
unpaid capital balance)

2019 2018

Revenue - -

Loss for the year (548,838) (5,004)
Proportion ofthe Group’s ownership

interest in the joint venture 50% 50%

(274,419) (2,502)
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NOTE 23 - INVESTMENTS ON A JOINT VENTURE (Continued)

2019 2018

Group’s Share of Gain / (Loss)
for the penod (274,420) (2,502)
(274,420) (2,502)

The movement of investments in associate for the years ended as of 31 December 2019 and 2018 are as
follows:

2019 2018
1 January 4,896,797 -
Capital mcrease 4,600,701 4,500,700
Unpaid capital - (1,401)
Gain / (Loss) fromassociates (274,420) (2,502)
Service provided by the Group (401,549) -
31 December 8,821,529 4,896,797

NOTE 24 - EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to 31 December 2019, the World Health Organization declared that the coronavirus outbreak
became a global health emergency, first beginning in China and subsequently spreading to other
countries. Accordingly, the economy in which Group is operating may be affected due to certain
developments in relation to this novel strain of coronavirus. Such a health outbreak could slow
economies and could result as an adverse impact to operating results or increase in expected credit losses.
The duration and intensity of the impact of the coronavirus and resulting disruption to the Group’s
operations is uncertain and it is unknown whether or how they may be affected for an extended period.
While not yet quantifiable, the Group continues to assess the financial impact of this situation to its
operating results for the remainder of the year.

Karpower International B.V paid to USD 126,000,000 dividend to Karkey Karadeniz Elektrik A.S. in
2020.

KPS 24 Karadeniz Powership ibrahim Bey has arrived to Conakry and started operations on 14 February
2020.

Karpowership LNG Solutions DMCC and One World Marine DMCC companies has been established
in 17 March 2020.

Karpowership Conakry (Succursale) has been established in 25 February 2020.
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NOTE 24 - EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD (Coatinued)

Karpower International DMCC has sold KPS 82 Karmol LNGT Powership Anatolia powership at
amounting to USD 31,000,000.

Koray Bey Company and Gambia National Water and Electricity Company (“NAWEC”) extended the
Power Purchase Agreement on 2 May 2020 for 48 months.

NOTE 25 APPROVAL OF SPECIAL PURPOSE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

These special purpose consolidated financial statements as of and for the period between
1 January - 31 December 2019 have been approved and signed on 5 June 2020 on behalf of the Board
of Directors by Orhan Remzi Karadeniz, Managing Director of Karpower International B.V.
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